BOARD OF UNION COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

REGULAR MEETING
AGENDA DOCUMENT #20220083
1
0:00 arn. September 13, 2022 ?9/?);221 04:36:28 PM
1. Call to order BY Mary Lou Harkins
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Approval of agenda and minutes
4. Hospital Report
5. Discussion/Possible Action Items
10:00 Joint Communication Meeting with Town of Clayton and Clayton
Municipal Schools
i.  Commission Approval of Emergency Manager NMSA§ 12-10-5
ii.  Ordinance 2023-45 LEDA
iii.  Resolution 2023-06 Certification of 2022 Tax Rates
iv.  Resolution 2023-07 Physical Inventory Certification
v.  Resolution 2023-08 BAR Capulin EMS
vi.  Resolution 2023-09 BAR Jails
vii.  Petition for Vacation of Sunnyside Addition Blk 38, 39, 41, 42
viii, Declaration of Emergency
ix.  Paramedic Allocation Change
x.  Fire Coordinator Position
xi. Dedication/ Memorial Walter C. Hall
xii.  Road Crossing Permits
xiii.  Inventory Items Disposition - Road Department International Water Truck
xiv.  Approval of Bills
xv.  Healthcare Assistance - Approval of Claims
xvi.  County Travel Requests

9:30 a.m. Citizen’s Forum
Jan Pryor - Paramedic
Village of Grenville

L s

Road Superintendents Report

Fire Coordinator/Emergency Manager Report
County Manager Report

Elected Officials Reports

Adjourn

As of 9/8/2022



BOARD OF UNION COUNTY COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING
August 9, 2022

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

Chairman Justin K. Bennett Commissioner Clayton F. Kiesling ~ Commissioner Walter C. Hall

OTHERS PRESENT:

Clerk Brenda Green Manager Brandy Thompson Assessor Hollie Sandoval
Sheriff James Lobb Road Superintendent Russell Kear Emergency Manager Kris Lawrence
GUESTS:

Tammie Stump — CEO, Union County General Hospital
Melissa Prante — CFO, Union County General Hospital
Shawn Nethery — CCO, Union County General Hospital
Justin Drumm — TOC Fire Chief

Joe Reeser — Sedan Fire Chief

Cathy Daniels

At 9:03 a.m., Chairman Bennett called the meeting to order in the Commission Chambers located in the Union
County Administration Building. The pledge of allegiance was recited.

Commissioner Hall moved to approve the agenda and the regular meeting minutes of July 19, 2022, with the
addition of Commissioner Hall's travel to a NMDOT meeting in Las Vegas, NM. Commissioner Kiesling
seconded. There was no further discussion. Vote: ALL AYE. The minutes were amended and signed.

HOSPITAL REPORT

Tammie Stump, CEO, reported on statistics for June. Before the meeting, the “County Commissioner Monthly
Hospital Report, Union County General Hospital, Tammie Stump, CEO, August 9, 2022”, was distributed to the
board. Items covered included the following {but not limited to the following): Provider Recruitment Update;
Financial Assistance/Compliance Update; Business Office/Revenue Cycle Update; Compliance; Radiology;
Plant Services; Therapy Services; Union County/Des Moines Health Centers; IT; HVAC/Vestibule/Cryogenic
Tank 3000 gallon/Grade Survey.

Shawn Nethery, CCO, reported on statistics for June. Before the meeting, the “County Commissioner Monthly
Hospital Report, Union County General Hospital, Shawn Nethery, CCO, August 9, 2022”, was distributed to the
board. Items covered included the following {but not limited to the following): Social Work; Home Health Care
Report; Laboratory Services; Pharmacy; Clinical/Quality Updates.



Melissa Prante, CFO, reported on financials for June. There were no handouts distributed to the board. ltems
covered included the following (but not limited to the following): Key Statistics; Statement of Revenue and
Expenses — YTD; Balance Sheet.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS

VILLAGE OF DES MOINES GRANT FISCAL AGENT REQUEST

This item was tabled until later in the meeting to allow time for Village of Des Moines members to arrive.

ICIP WORKSHOP

Mgr. Thompson provided a list of proposed Infrastructure Capital Improvement Plan (ICIP) F2024-2028 items
for Union County for review. After some discussion, the list was finalized for adoption.

RESOLUTION 2023-05 ICIP ACCEPTANCE

" A proposed resolution adopting an Infrastructure Capital Improvement Plan (ICIP).

Commissioner Kiesling moved to approve Resolution #2023-05, Adopting an Infrastructure Capital
Improvement Plan {ICIP). Commissioner Hall seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE.
Resolution signed.

APPROVAL OF BILLS

Bills in the amount of $96,624.77 were presented for review.

Commissioner Kiesling moved to approve bills in the amount of $96,624.77, and authorized Mgr. Thompson to
pay any bills presented through the end of the month. Commissioner Hall seconded. Chairman Bennett stated
that his wife is receiving reimbursement from the county for completed EMT classes. There was no further
discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Motion carried.

ROAD CROSSING PERMITS

Permit #471 submitted by Permitee Plateau, for the purpose of allowing Permitee to lay cable for the purpose
of Fiber Optic Distribution Cable Installation across Rinker Road, located in Sec. 12, T26N, R36E.

Permit #472 submitted by Permitee Plateau, for the purpose of allowing Permitee to lay cable for the purpose
of Fiber Optic Distribution Cable Installation across Furlow Road, located in Sec 10, T23N, R35E.

Commissioner Kiesling moved to approve Road Crossing Permits #471 and #472. Commissioner Hall seconded.
There was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Motion carried.

INVENTORY ITEMS DISPOSITION — ROAD DEPARTMENT INTERNATIONAL WATER TRUCK

There were no item presented for disposition.



HEALTHCARE ASSISTANCE — APPROVAL OF CLAIMS

There were no healthcare assistance claims presented for review.

COUNTY TRAVEL REQUESTS

Commissioners Kiesling and Hall will attend the Ports-to-Plains conference in Big Spring, Texas, Chairman
Bennett will attend the Gathering of Counties at the New Mexico State Fair, Commissioner Kiesling will attend
an EPCOG meeting in Clovis, Sheriff Lobb will attend the Sheriff’s affiliate meeting in Ruidoso, Treasurer Arnett
and Deputy Treasurer Arellano will attend the Treasurer’s affiliate retreat in Roswell, Mgr. Thompson will
attend a NMCIA meeting in Albuguerque. All travel approved.

At 10:25 a.m., the meeting recessed for a short break.
At 10:36 a.m., the meeting resumed.

CITIZEN’S FORUM

Cathy Daniels was present to speak about her continued concern with the 30X30 federal land program. The
program has been renamed, to the “America the Beautiful” program. To bring more awareness to the
program, Ms. Daniels is considering writing an article to be published in the newspaper.

TOC Fire Chief Justin Drumm was present to speak about the fire department’s need for additional space to
store equipment, vehicles, etc. and expressed continued interest in the former Rabbit Ears Fire station
building. At this time, the county has no plans to dispose of the building, but may be able to work out a
temporary/shared space arrangement to help the TOC. Chief Drumm also gave a brief update on the CAD
project.

VILLAGE OF DES MOINES GRANT FISCAL AGENT REQUEST

This item was tabled earlier in the meeting. Village of Des Moines officials were unable to attend. Upon
request by Chairman Bennett, Mgr. Thompson gave an overview of the grant fiscal agent request by the
Village.

Commissioner Kiesling moved to approve the County Manager to pursue an agreement with the Village of Des
Moines to act as their fiscal agent, with a 1% administration fee to be assessed for providing said service.
Commissioner Hall seconded. There was ho further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Motion carried.

ROAD SUPERINTENDENTS REPORT

Road Superintendent Kear reported on the following (but not limited to the following): Due to recent rains,
crews are very busy fixing washouts and other damage around the county; Blading of roads is a priority to take
advantage of the moisture; Maintenance is being done to the crusher prior to moving it to Des Moines.

FIRE COORDINATOR/EMERGENCY MANAGER REPORT

Mgr. Thompson reported that Fire Protection Fund grants are being worked on by all fire departments in the
county. Kris Lawrence, Union County’s new Emergency Manager, introduced himself to the Board.



COUNTY MANAGER REPORT

Mgr. Thompson reported on the following (but not limited to the following): Recent attendance of a NERTPO
meeting in Quay County; Brief overview of a proposed updated LEDA (Local Economic Development Act)
ordinance, which will be advertised for the Commission meeting in September; Update on the Herd Law
District project; Update on HVAC for the portable building; Received notification that the FY23 budget has
been approved.

ELECTED OFFICIALS REPORT

Sheriff Lobb reported on the following (but not limited to the following): Reviewing applications to fill deputy
position; Will be lending a Conex container to the TOC Fire Department for storage of PPE.

Assessor Sandoval reported that property values were certified in July, and values are up. Her office will begin
reappraisals in the north part of the county, to be completed by the end of the year. Preliminary work on the
software conversion has begun.

Clerk Green reported that her office attended General election school August 1-3, no changes in election
procedure for the General Election, and Clerk Green and Chief Deputy Harkins will attend a Legislative
Priorities Affiliate meeting in Albuquerque, date TBD.

Commissioner Hall expressed his continued concern about the Herd Law District issue, and hopes a solution is
found soon. Also, he reported on his attendance of a NMDOT meeting in Las Vegas, NM, at which DOT District
Engineer Gallegos stated his desire to visit Union County to view the state roads Commissioner Hall reported
needing repairs. Mgr. Thompson is coordinating his visit.

Commissioner Kiesling reported on his recent attendance of a NEEDO meeting via Zoom with Economic
Development Director Lynette Keeth. Ms. Keeth plans to attend the quarterly Joint Communications meetings
to report on her activities.

Chairman Bennett reported on NACo's involvement with the “Light Up Green for Veterans Week” program.
NACo’s website is a good source for details on the program.

ADJOURN: At 11:53 a.m., Commissioner Kiesling moved to adjourn. Commissioner Hall seconded. There was
no further discussion. Vote: ALL AYE. Motion carried.

Meeting Announcements: The next regular meeting will be held on Tuesday, September 13 at 9:00 a.m. The
next Joint Communication meeting will be held on Tuesday, September 13, at 10:00 a.m.

Board of Union County Commissioners

Union County, New Mexico

ATTEST Justin K. Bennett - Chairman

SEAL

Clayton F. Kiesling - Vice Chairman

Brenda L. Green — County Clerk Walter C. Hall - Member



REQUEST FROM UCGH MILL LEVY/GRT 8/24/2022

BY: Melissa Prante

Date PAID TO: AMOUNT

| 52312022 3M HEALTH INFORMATION 1 23,549.63
6/16/2022 CPsi _ 29,479.33
6/29/2022 CPSI 7,680.47
7/21/2022  |CPSI - 20,264.40
5/12/2022 GSD - ADMIN SERVICES DIVISION 62,136.25
6/16/2022 GSD - ADMIN SERVICES DIVISION 62,799.22
7/21/2022 GSD - ADMIN SERVICES DIVISION 62,040.54

| 5/31/2022  |HOLISTIC PAIN MGMT OF COLORADO 17,030.00
 7/13/2022 SOMA TECHNOLOGY 15,220.90
- TOTAL $  301,109.74

UNION COUNTY HOSPITAL BOARD APPROVAL DATE




Clayton Health Systems, Inc

Union County General Consolidated Executive Financial Summary

KEY STATISTICS |

1st Month FYE 2023

Unaudited

STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES - Y

07/31/22 07/31/22 YTD YTD

ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE
Total Admissions 15 19 15 19 (4)
Total Patient Days 36 86 36 86 (50)
Average Length of Stay Total 2.40 4.53 2.40 4.53 213
Total Emergency Room Visits 158 161 158 161 3)
Outpatient Visits (NOT CLINIC) 513 629 513 629 (116)
Total Surgeries 6 4 6 4 2
Total Gl Procedures 4 7 4 7 3)

07/31/22 07/31/22 YTD YTD
REPORTED IN THOUSANDS ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE
Revenue:
Gross Patient Revenues $1,312 $1,793 $1,312 $1,793 (481)
Deductions from Revenue (500) (784) (500) (784) 284
Net Patient Revenues 812 1,008 812 1,008 (197)
Other Revenue 276 295 276 295 (19)
Total Net Revenues 1,088 1,303 1,088 1,303 (216)
Expenses:
Salaries & Benefits 646 704 646 704 58
Professional Fees 59 47 59 a7 (12)
Purchased Services 113 113 113 113 0
Supply Expenses 106 128 106 128 22
Other Operating Expenses 249 231 249 231 (18)
Depreciation & Interest Expense 70 73 70 73 3
Total Expenses 1,243 1,296 1,243 1,296 53
OPERATING MARGIN (155) 8 (155) 8 (163)
NET MARGIN ($155) $8 ($155) $8 ($163)
EBIDA ($85) $81 ($85) $81 ($166)

Unaudited 07/31/22 07/31/21 06/30/21
ASSETS
Current Assets $3,293 $5,348 $5,976
Property, Plant & Equipment (Net) 9,957 10,573 10,626
Other Assets 842 1,081 925
Total Unrestricted Assets 14,092 17,002 17,527
Assets Whose Use is Limited 2,025 1,570 1,530
Total Assets $16,117 $18,572 $19,057
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities $1,580 $3,375 $3,887
Debt Borrowings, net of current 2,415 2,497 2,503
Total Liabilities 3,995 5,872 6,390
Net Position 12,122 12,700 12,667
Total Liabilities and Net Position $16,117 $18,572 $19,057

BALANCE SHEET
Audited




CLAYTON HEALTH SYSTEMS
AUGUST 24, 2022 MOR
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Period Ending July 31, 2022

INCOME STATEMENT:

ONOORWONS

Gross patient revenue for July is $1.31M; $481k < budget; $273k < PY.
Total net patient revenue for the month, after CA was $812k.

Total other revenue for July is $196k.

County tax subsidy revenue is $80k.

Total MTD net operating revenue is $1.09M; $216k < budget; $80k < PY.
Operating expenses for July are $1.24M; $53k < budget; $104k > PY.
Operating loss of $155k and EBIDA loss of $85k.

YTD, we have an operating loss of $155k and EBIDA loss of $85k.

YTD Budget to Actual Variances is as follows:

BALANCE SHEET:

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.

UCGH had cash and cash equivalents of $1.48M.
July had CD balances total $928k.

AR Mill Levy and GRT balance $360k.

Net Patient AR is $1.44M.

AP Manual accruals is $47k.

Estimated 3" party settlements $440k for MAAP
CR for 2021 has an estimate of $9k receivable.
CR for 2022 has an estimated payable of $43k
July Days Cash on Hand is 37 days.



DRAFT AGENDA
Joint Communication Meeting
Town/County/Clayton Schools
Tuesday, September 13, 2022
10:00 AM
Community Civic Room at the Union County Building

Call to order

Pledge of Allegiance

Approval of Agenda*
Document Approvals: *

Visitors
1. Rebecca Baca
2. George Dodge
New Business*
1. Representative Chatfield and Senator Woods
2. CAD Update
3. National Guard Armory Discussion

Reports

Meeting Announcement
a. Next regular scheduled Joint Communications Meeting will be
Tuesday, December 13, 2022 at 10:00am

Adjournment

* Action Items




COUNTY OF UNION, NEW MEXICO
ORDINANCE NO. 45

AN ORDINANCE CONCERNING LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT IN UNION
COUNTY, NEW MEXICO; ESTABLISHING THE PURPOSE OF THE ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE; PROVIDING DEFINED TERMS; ADOPTING THE
UNION COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN; PROVIDING FOR
APPLICATIONS FOR PUBLIC SUPPORT OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
PROJECTS; PROVIDING APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS FOR PUBLIC SUPPORT;
PROVIDING CRITERIA FOR EVALUTION OF APPLICATIONS FOR PUBLIC
SUPPORT; DELEGATING AUTHORITY TO EVALUATE AND MAKE
RECOMMENDATIONS CONCERNING APPLICATIONS TO CUCEDP; PROVIDING
REVIEW CRITERIA; PROVIDING FOR SECURITY AND FOR ASSURANCES THAT
THE ECONOMIC GOALS WILL BE MET BY APPLICANTS FOR PUBLIC SUPPORT;
PROVIDING FOR A PROJECT PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT ON EACH PROJECT;
PROVIDING THAT ANY APPLICATION FOR PUBLIC SUPPORT SHALL BE
APPROVED BY ORDINANCE ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS; PROVIDING FOR JOINT REGIONAL PROJECTS; REPEALING
ORDINANCE NO. 30 AND RESCINDING PRIOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
PLANS.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF UNION COUNTY,
NEW MEXICO:

Section 1.  Citations to the Local Economic Development Ordinance. -- This Ordinance
may be cited as the “Union County Local Economic Development Ordinance" or “the Local
Economic Development Ordinance.”

Section 2. Authority. -- The Local Economic Development Ordinance is enacted pursuant to
the statutory authority conferred upon counties to provide direct support of economic
development by the Local Economic Development Act (“LEDA”), NMSA 1978, §§ 5-10-1 et
seq., and Art. IX Sec. 14 of the New Mexico Constitution.

Section 3. Purpose. -- The purpose of the Economic Development Ordinance is to implement
the provisions of the Local Economic Development Act, NMSA 1978, Sec. 5-10-1 ef seq. (as
amended) and the 1994 constitutional amendment to Art. IX, Sec. 14 of the Constitution of New
Mexico, which permit public support of economic development to foster, promote, and enhance
local economic development efforts while continuing to protect against the unauthorized use of
public money and other public resources. In addition, this Ordinance is intended to permit the
County to enter into one or more joint powers agreement with other local governments to plan
and support regional economic development projects. See e.g. NMSA 1978, Sec. 5-10-2(B).



Section 4. Definitions. --

A. “Economic development project” or “project” means the project of a qualifying entity
for which public support may be provided pursuant to LEDA;

B. “Qualifying entity” means a person, a corporation, a limited liability company, a
partnership, a joint venture, an association, or other person that is one or combination of two or
more of the following:

i. An industry for manufacturing, processing, or assembling of any agricultural or
manufactured products;

ii. A commercial enterprise for storing, warehousing, distributing, or selling
products of agriculture, mining or industry, not including any enterprise for sale of goods or
commodities at retail or for the distribution to the public of electricity, gas, water, or telephone or
other services commonly classified as public utilities;

iii. A business, including a restaurant or lodging establishment, in which all or
part of the activities of the business involves the supplying of services to the general public or to
government agencies or to a specific industry or customer, primarily engaged in the sale of goods
or commodities at retail;

iv. An Indian Nation, Tribe or Pueblo or a federally chartered tribal corporation;

v. A telecommunications sales enterprise that makes the majority of its sales to
persons outside of New Mexico;

vi. A facility for the direct sales by growers of agricultural products, commonly
known as farmer’s markets;

vii. A business that is the developer of a metropolitan redevelopment project; or
viii. A retail business.

C. “Economic development project” means the project of a qualifying entity for which
public support may be provided through LEDA and this Ordinance;

D. “Public support” means the provision of assistance by the State to a local or regional
government or the provision of direct or indirect assistance to a qualifying entity by a local or
regional government for an economic development project. "Public support":

i. includes the provision of:

_ a. land, buildings or other infrastructure, by purchase, lease, grant,
construction, reconstruction, improvement or other acquisition or conveyance;



b. the placement of new broadband telecommunications network
facilities, provided that the facilities shall not serve a public facility or location that already
meets federal communications commission baseline speed standards;

c. rights-of-way infrastructure, including trenching and conduit, for the
placement of new broadband telecommunications network facilities;

d. public works improvements essential to the location or expansion of a
qualifying entity;

e. payments for professional services contracts necessary for local or
regional governments to implement a plan or provide public support for a project;

f. direct loans or grants for land, buildings or infrastructure;

g. technical assistance to cultural facilities;

h. loan guarantees securing the cost of land, buildings or infrastructure in
an amount not to exceed the revenue that may be derived from an increment of the county gross
receipts tax imposed at a rate not to exceed one-eighth percent and dedicated by the ordinance

imposing the increment for projects;

i. grants for public works infrastructure improvements essential to the
location or expansion of a qualifying entity and grants or subsidies to cultural facilities;

j. land for a publicly held industrial park or a publicly owned cultural
facility, by purchase; and

k. the construction of a building for use by a qualifying entity; but

ii. does not include the purchase, lease, grant or other acquisition or conveyance
of water rights or any items not specifically listed.

F. "Regional government" means any combination of municipalities and counties that
enter into a joint powers agreement to provide public support for economic development projects

pursuant to a plan adopted by all parties to a joint powers agreement;

G. "Retail business" means a business that is primarily engaged in the sale of goods or
commodities at retail and that is located in an unincorporated area of Union County; and

H. "County" shall refer to Union County New Mexico, and its Board of County
Commissioners.

Section 5. Limitation on Public Money Expended. --

The total amount of public money expended and the value of credit pledged in the fiscal



year in which that money is expended by the Board of County Commissioners for economic
development projects pursuant to Art. 9, Sec. 14 of the Constitution of New Mexico and the
Local Economic Development Act shall not exceed ten percent (10%) of the annual general fund
expenditures of Union County in that fiscal year. The limits of this subsection shall not apply to:

A. the value of any land or building contributed to any project pursuant to a project
participation agreement;

B. revenue generated through the imposition of an increment of the municipal gross
receipts tax at a rate not to exceed one-fourth percent and dedicated to furthering or
implementing economic development plans and projects as defined in the Local Economic
Development Act or projects as defined in the Statewide Economic Development Finance Act;
provided that no more than the greater of fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) or ten percent of the
revenue collected shall be used for promotion and administration of or professional services
contracts related to the implementation of any such economic development plan adopted by the
Board of County Commissioners;

C. revenue generated through the imposition of an increment of the county gross receipts
tax at a rate not to exceed one-eighth percent and dedicated to furthering or implementing
economic development plans and projects as defined in the Local Economic Development Act or
projects as defined in the Statewide Economic Development Finance Act; provided that no more
than the greater of fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) or ten percent (10%) of the revenue collected
shall be used for promotion and administration of or professional services contracts related to the
implementation of the Economic Development Plan adopted by the Board of County
Commissioners herein;

D. the proceeds of a revenue bond issue to which the county infrastructure gross receipts
tax revenue is pledged;

E. the proceeds of a revenue bond issue to which the revenue from an increment of the
county gross receipts tax, imposed at a rate not to exceed one-eighth percent and dedicated by
the ordinance imposing the increment to provide public support for projects, is pledged; or

F. funds donated by private entities to be used for defraying the cost of a project.

Section 6. Economic Development Plan. --

A. The economic development plan contained in the County’s Comprehensive Plan
(Resolution No. 2020-43, Ch. 4) is adopted as the County’s economic development plan.

B. The County’s economic development plan shall be printed and made available to the
residents of Union County and shall also be made available to the general public through the
County’s internet web page: https.//unionnm.us/.



Section 7. Regional Economic Development Plans. --

A. Union County and another County, or Union County and any incorporated
municipality within the County, may enter into a joint powers agreement pursuant to the Joint
Powers Agreements Act (11-1-1 ef seq.) to develop and implement a regional economic
development plan, which may consist of existing local plans. The parties to such a joint powers
agreement shall be deemed a regional government for the purposes of LEDA.

B. The joint powers agreement shall require that the governing body of each local
government approve public support for each economic development project. The agreement may
also provide for appointment of a project manager who shall be responsible for the management
of projects and project funds. The agreement may provide for a regional body consisting of
representatives from the governing bodies of each local government that is a party to the
agreement and may determine the powers and duties of that body in implementing the regional
government's plan and providing public support for project.

Section 8. Public Support of Economic Development Projects. --

A. The Board of County Commissioners of Union County may provide public support of
an economic development project in any legally permissible manner described herein so long as
all the requirements of this Ordinance, the Local Economic Development Act, or Art. IX Sec. 14
of the Constitution are met.

B. Nothing herein shall create an obligation on the County’s part to offer any specific
type of assistance to a qualified entity.

Section 9. Applications for Public Support. --
1. After this Ordinance becomes effective, a qualifying entity interested in public support
may submit an application for public support of a qualifying entity's proposed economic

development project.

2. The application shall be on a form provided by the County and require the applicant to
provide such information or supporting documentation as it deems necessary.

Section 10.  Application Requirements. --

1. The Application for public support shall be made on a form provided by the County,
and shall contain the following information:

a. Identification information:

i. The complete name and address of entity;

ii. The business formation papers (such as articles of incorporation) with
relevant by-laws; and

iii. A list of the members of the board of directors and executive director,



addresses, and copies of resumes of all directors and officers.
b. Evidence of financial solvency:

i. A copy of a financial statements (income statement and balance sheets)
for the past three years;

ii. Federal tax number, New Mexico State Taxation and Revenue number
and a copy of the county business license; and

iii. A statement of projected income for at least three years.

c. Evidence of organizational capacity:

i. A brief history of the entity;

ii. A copy of the organizational chart of the entity; and

iii. A copy of the business plan for the entity and the proposed economic
development project (including a pro-forma cash flow analysis); and

d. A copy of a proposed Project Participation Agreement;

2. The application and supporting documentation shall be forwarded to CUCEDP and
the Board of County Commissioners for final consideration at a public meeting.

Section 11. Clayton Union County Economic Development Partnership (CUCEDP). --

1. The Clayton Union County Economic Development Partnership (CUCEDP) shall be
delegated responsibility to receive applications for public support, evaluate the applications
against this Ordinance and the requirements of LEDA, and make recommendations concerning
applications to the Board of County Commissioners.

2. The CUCEDP may make its own application for public support pursuant to this
Ordinance, but if it does so, it shall not have the responsibilities described in the previous
subsection and the Board of County Commissioners (or its designee) will receive, evaluate and
act on such application without the participation of CUCEDP.

3. The CUCEDP shall include a member of the Board of County Commissioners on its
Board of Directors. The Chair of the Board of County Commissioners shall make the
appointment with the advice and consent of the Board of County Commissioners.

Section 12. Review Criteria. --

1. An application for public support shall be evaluated according to the provisions of the
economic development plan, the financial and management stability of the qualifying entity, the
demonstrated commitment of the qualifying entity to the County, a cost-benefit analysis of the
project (see Section 13), and any other information the County believes is necessary for a full
review of the economic development project application.



2. Any approved application for public support shall be approved by ordinance.

3. An application for public support proposing any of the following are desirable and
may receive a favorable recommendation:

A. Projects involving manufacturing;

B. Projects involving development of intellectual property such as computer
software;

C. Projects which enhance the exporting capacity of companies and or that
provide goods and services to the County that currently have to be imported into Union County;

D. Private companies seeking to build, expand, or relocate facilities within the
County;

E. Private companies which provide facilities or services which enhance the
ability of existing Union County businesses to operate;

F. Organizations which assist business start-ups or bring small companies
together to increase their competitive abilities and create jobs;

G. Examples include, but are not limited to:
i. Business incubators;

ii. Artincubators or coalition (e.g. a performing arts coalition seeking
construction rehearsal or performance facilities);

iii. Public markets for farmers, gardeners, crafts, etc.; or

iv. Organizations which foster economic development by promoting work
force development efforts such as apprenticeships or other job training programs.

Section 13. Cost/Benefit Analysis. --
Each application for public support of an economic development project shall submit a

cost benefit analysis along with the application. The cost-benefit analysis shall address all of the
following:

A. The number and type of jobs to be created, whether temporary or permanent;
B. The pay scale of jobs to be created;

C. A determination of which jobs are expected to be filled locally and which will
be filled by persons not resident in Union County;




D. The total payroll expected at start-up and after one year;

E. The source and rationale for any multiplier effects;

F. The anticipated impact on local tax base; and

G. The anticipated impact on local school systems.
Section 14. Annual Review. --

Each economic development project receiving public support shall be subject to an
annual performance review conducted by the CUCEDP and/or the County. This review shall
evaluate whether the project is attaining the goals and objectives set forth in the project
participation agreement, the economic development plan, and LEDA. This review shall be
presented to the Board of County Commissioners for review and consideration.

Section 15. Termination of the Economic Development Plan or Public Support. --

1. At any time after approval of an economic development plan, the Board of County
Commissioners may enact an ordinance terminating the plan and dissolving or terminating any
public support for economic development projects based thereon. An ordinance repealing an
economic development plan shall not be effective unless the ordinance provides for satisfying
existing contracts and the rights of the parties arising from the contracts.

2. Any unexpended and unencumbered balances remaining in any project fund or
account upon repeal of a plan and termination of public support for or dissolution of a project
may be transferred to the general funds of the County.

3. In the case of funds or account of a regional government, the unexpended and
unencumbered balances shall be divided amount the participating local government as specified
in the joint powers agreement.

4. Termination of a project participation agreement for any reason shall be at a public
meeting.

Section 16. -- Project Participation Agreement.

A. If the Board of County Commissioners provides public support for an economic
development project without the participation of the State or a regional government, the
qualifying entity shall enter into a project participation agreement with the County as set forth in
this Section.

B. The project participation agreement shall use a form provided by the County and shall
require a substantive contribution from the qualifying entity for each instance of public support
for a proposed economic development project. The project participation agreement shall provide




that public support for an economic development project shall be in exchange for a substantive
contribution from the qualifying entity. The contribution shall be of value and may be paid in
money, in-kind services, jobs, expanded tax base, property, or other thing or service of value for
the expansion of the economy.

C. The project participation agreement shall specify that the qualifying entity shall
provide security to the Board of County Commissioners. The security shall secure the qualifying
entity's obligations based on terms stated in the project participation agreement and shall reflect
the amount of public support provided to the qualifying entity and the substantive contribution
expected from the qualifying entity. The security may be in the form of a lien, mortgage or other
indenture and the pledge of the qualifying entity's financial or other material participation and
cooperation to guarantee that qualifying entity's performance pursuant to the project participation
agreement. It may also be in the form of a letter of credit, a performance bond equal to the
County’s contribution to the project, a mortgage or' lien on the property or equipment, a pro-
rated reimbursement of the public support if company reduces its workforce or leaves the
community before the term agreed to, or other security agreeable to both parties.

D. If a qualifying entity fails to perform its substantive contribution, the Board of County
Commissioners shall enforce the project participation agreement to recover that portion of the
public support for which the qualifying entity failed to provide a substantive contribution. The
recovery shall be proportional to the failed performance of the substantive contribution and shall
take into account all previous substantive contributions for the economic development project
performed by the qualifying entity, based on the terms stated in the project participation
agreement,

E. The project participation agreement shall set out a schedule for project development
and completion, including measurable time limits for those goals.

F. The project participation agreement shall include provisions for an annual
performance review and actions to be taken upon a determination that project performance is
unsatisfactory.

Section 17. Project Funds. --

A. All project monies dedicated or pledged for public support for economic development
projects shall be deposited in a separate account. Separate subaccounts shall be established for
each separate project. Money in the special account shall be expended only for economic
development project purposes, which may include the payment of necessary professional
services contract costs.

B. An annual independent audit in accordance with the Audit Act of each special fund
and project account shall be accomplished. The audit shall be submitted to the County or
regional government and shall be a public record.



Section 18. Assignment. --

A qualifying entity with an approved project participation agreement shall not assign,
sell, lease or transfer an interest in an economic development project receiving public support
without the express written agreement of the Board of County Commissioners. The Board of
County Commissioners retains the right to deny any and all assignments, sales, leases or
transfers of any interests in the economic development project until adequate assurances are
made that the transferee, assignee or lessee is a qualifying entity and that the terms of the project
participation agreement will be satisfied by the transferee, assignee or lessee. At its discretion,
the Board of County Commissioners may choose to deny said assignment, condition the
assignment on deposit of adequate security, or negotiate a new agreement with the new
qualifying entity.

Section 19. -- Joint Regional Projects. --

Union County may engage in economic development projects involving one or more
government entities. In such instances, the relevant governing bodies shall adopt a joint powers
agreement pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 11-1-1 et seq.

Section 20. Repeal. -

Union County Ordinance No. 30 shall be and hereby is repealed. All economic
development plans dated prior to the plan adopted in Union County Resolution No. 2020-43,
shall be and hereby are rescinded and repealed.

ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF UNION COUNTY
ON THE 13TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2022.

Justin Bennett, Chair

Clay Kiesling, Member

County Clerk

Member

10



é%él]mon ouniy

RESOLUTION 2023-06

CERTIFICATE OF PROPERTY TAX RATES

WHEREAS, pursuant to NMSA 1978 Section 7-38-34 which requires that within five (5)
days of receipt of the property tax rate-setting order from the Department of Finance and
Administration, the Board of County Commissioners shall issue its written order imposing the
tax at the rates set on the net taxable value of property allocated to the approximate
governmental units. A copy of this resolution is accompanied by the Certificate of Tax Rates
shall be delivered immediately to the County Assessor after approval from the Board of
Commissioners of Union County, New Mexico.

Now therefore, be it resolved that the Certificate of Tax Rates for tax year 2022 be
approved and adopted on this 13th day of September, 2022.

ATTEST UNION COUNTY COMMISSION

Brenda Green, County Clerk Justin Bennett, Chairman

Clayton Kiesling, Member

Member



DocuSign Envelope ID: B19EEA74-508F-4AFA-BBA4-CB8A12A815AE

State of New Mexico

Department of Finance & Administration
180 Bataan Memorial Building
Santa Fe, New Mexico 87501
Phone: (505) 827-4985

Fax: (505) 827-4984
Michelle Lujan Grisham www.nmdfa.state.nm.us Deborah K. Romero
GOVERNOR Cabinet Secretary

September 1, 2022

The Honorable Justin Bennett
Union County

P.O. Box 430

Clayton, NM 88415

Order Setting Property Tax Rates - 2022 Property Tax Year
Dear Commissioner Bennett,

Pursuant to NMSA 1978, Sections 7-37-7(A) and 7-38-33(A), I issue this order setting the 2022
tax rates in the attached Certificate of Property Tax Rates (Certificate) for all governmental units
imposing rates in your county.

NMSA 1978, Section 7-38-34 requires the Board of County Commissioners (Board) to issue and
deliver to the County Assessor its own written order imposing these rates within five days of its
receipt of this rate-setting order. Before the Board issues its order, the county is responsible
for ensuring that the rates are correct and must notify the Local Government Division of
the Department of Finance and Administration of any errors, in accordance with 3.6.50.1 1
(D) NMAC. To further those efforts, please immediately share the Certificate with all
governmental units (other than the State) that have rates included in the Certificate, so that they
may also check the accuracy of their rates. In addition, please note that the "percentage change I"
used as specified in NMSA 1978, Section 7-37-7.1 (A) for yield control calculations this year
was the statutory maximum of 5% due to inflation and typically calculates higher mill rates.

Any questions concerning or suspected errors in the rates should be immediately brought to the
attention of the Local Government Division's Budget and Finance Bureau Chief, Brenda L.
Suazo-Giles, at 505-670-9817; or Special Projects Analyst, Jolene Gonzales, at 505-629-8204.

Sincerely,

DocuSigned by:

Deborsl K Roemers

DCA2D2A1284C454..

Deborah K. Romero
Secretary of Finance & Administration

cc: Property Tax Division, Taxation & Revenue Department (via email)
County Assessor (via email)

County Treasurer (via email)

Enclosure(s): Certificate of Property Tax Rates

Administrative Services Division (505) 827-3638 Financial Control Division (505) 827-3682 State Board of Finance (505) 827-4980
State Budget Division (505) 827-3640 Local Government Division (505) 827-4975



jsa8ed 2a1y3 1xau uo
pai1eJisn||i Se siapeay uwnjod 0}
uonjuane asod Aed asea|d os Japio
| ouswnueydie ul ae s32L11SIQ XeL

|99X3 01 3|genodxa
pue 4ad ul syodal uoinguasip
Xe1 pue S3}ediilad Xel pepuels

S33Ed ||IW JIAISS 1G3 e
53013sIp 953]03 40§ S31.! [[IW P33 GIHe

spLIsIp
el |ooyas a1jgnd 1oy s3ed [[IW paliiad 3de

|043U03 P|3IA Ul pasn sa1ed ||iw uoIsIng XeL
JeaA Jouid Jo 19A0[[0d dljewolny. Auadoud ‘Qy L WoJy BIEP UOKEN[EA PISS3SsYe

Ssajel [|lw p3||0JIu0d
-p|3IA JO uoile|nded JlzewoIny

:Jo Aljua
A9y |enuew a1euiwije suodwi eleq

(W21sAS uawWadeue|A 193png 1USWUISA0Y |BI0T) SINGDT
9|npo|A Xel Aliadold Aq palesausn

[1eWI04 M3N Ul S31B2IJILIS) XBL 7ZOT JBSA XEL 03 3pIND

3Y518vZIv8g0-vvag-v4vy-4805-v/ V33616 ‘al 8dojaauz ubignoog




16861
AN
00S0

oS
000%¢

0000

0se0L
0ce ol

€eL0L8
[iBMSOY NIINI

186S0Y

390 1N0 L
wawdinb3 seg) ¥ 10

498'61
PAZR:
00sa

0se0l
0senl

09¢°4
ageL

8166.89°€
[BMSOH NINNI
|pMsoy

d90.1n0 |t
uonoNpold se9 P 10

puysig|ooyas pue jediiungy
*fijuno) ‘aje)s 21113 Xe) jo| abeqd

168'61
FAJ
0050

s
Qaoe

0000

COP'SEa Tl
[IEs0y (KNI

ERTa!

¥NLNO L

[BQUAPISEN-LON

3P0 dJBWNURYd]R U) PALIOS SUWNOD

F65vl
0887
€320

09¢°4
03t

169297 €Sl
[I84SeY (FING

ey

¥ilnot
[equapisay

..E&ox._-a_!-»...ﬂ-—szg = c/r'9

Rsig

600'82 ¥6L'1e [eoyag pue [edidiunyy ‘Aunc) ‘ajeis [ej0)
4718 088'L RUsig [eoyIs (8oL
00s 0 £92°0 feuones2dQ wRUSIQ 100WIS
- - . 201095 1620 Y231 PI WINSIQ [00WS
LFO'G 179G 201§ 193 10Usi( 1004
0002 081 (Ax87 6 1'g 8iEusS) awaAIdw] [ende [0oYS
- 2 {fa87 €€ (19 #3n0H) Buipyng 100438
o518 002'L fedisiuniy jej0)
1= 2693 [euonesadQ edoum|y
2050 Z0S'0 301085 123Q [ediunyy
0sc0L vSE'S Kunog [mo)
- - (pajonuoy prada 1oN) leuonesadg Qune)
0se0l FeE'S [euonessdQ Aunod
- - A2AIBS 1g8(] AJUno)
03¢’k 09¢'L 3jels (2ol
09l 09g'L SAMSS 198 BiElS
113810 [00y2s pue ‘Ayredidunyy ‘Auno) ‘el Joj salaeT W
LE6'TTFLST 1£2'683°TrS aneA qexel P T Ty
l[aMsoy NIINT llmsod NINI Touisiq 820D 1LISIP X0 40 ISP
[[BMs0Y laasoy WUIsH] [0043S J1and .V-Shi i
3:884 IM3N
(A0} [[amsoy (RuD) lpasoy Aijediungy e \\\\\| —— //
YNNI HNIL Pusigxel” _Il-lﬂ._l.ﬂn.ﬂ_m:uﬂ
|EQUAPISEM-UCH [Bnuspisay uchedyIsse|) @maoi —
T ey £6'8r2 18 3NTwA 379¥XVYL 13N ALNNOD TIN3A0

e 1207 J22A XL
3, XT] PUT SWEN AIUNOD gHM J3PTIH g

Auno) saneyl
2 SIIpy ur saey xe | Auadold jo 21Rayius) I

1Z0Z 183 K21 - AUn07) SBABYD - S| Wi saiey xe| Ausdeold o Fjeapua)

31VII41143D XV1 I1dINVS

3VS18VZLvedo-yvaa-v4vr-4805-¥.v3361 6 :dl @dojeauzg ubignooq



€Lz 39:58.\2.-20@-53 e
158702 168702 0es Lz 66671 e 8CH8Z Ie10 puesy
00070 00070 €58 £©re £LF°S £LFS Y0 [P10L
(paiioguod
X ) . . - - DISIA 10N) [EUCGEIRdQ PIsC [E38dS
QOMS GRUOH J2ddN
(p3lioauc)
5 = = s = # DIBIA 0N) [euonessdo dUsIQ [eRsds
QOMS 13paQ uewsaleH
(panosuod
- - . - - - DIBIA JON) [euonesadQ Puisiy |enads
e goms AsgeA [£4U0
e T~ Y (Pa104U00
- 'SWLI0J (14 U0 UoReWIo U] 03 Buipaoaoe uwnjod D PRG0N PUOREINO HERHA FERds
T PS|p Xe) pajedosse Japun pajsy] $ajed PSP jeppads INGENE = QoM oIscusgd
o eee— e —— idbmaa s i ditana - e —— T AUO—._O.DCS
- - 0001 0001 < - DRIA 10N) [EuoneladQ 1usig (eRads
QIMS SAAEYD
- . si6°e a6e SI6°€ si6°¢ ‘ (BUOREIAA0 LIS (£930S
WUISIJ AQUBAIBSURD URISSUY A3(|EA S038d
= = 8571 857’} g5t} 8611 [eucgesadQ pusig [eRadg
101IU0D POO|d SIABUD
- - - - - - 209§ 1990 PUSIC [ERAIS
GSM %3910 INUIEM-POOMUONOD
. sannu3 Duixe] J8YLQ JOJ SAIAT W
< mudsoypurabopoosmdisbeqmoymor T [eudsoH *262(10] ‘00Uas
16802 25802 15802 aatsL 60062 93922 211qnd ‘[edisung Auncd ‘A0S (0oL pUtI9
000'L 000°L 000°} zg0 000°4 780 1endsoH pue 303((0]) (€101
000°0 000°0 0000 000°0 000°0 000°0 eHdSOH [110]
000't 000°4 000"t usgo 000°} 2180 uoReaNpF 13UBIH 10101
000t 000'L 000t uUsgo 000} 8o ieuonesadQ PIISIQ 863100
- - 0 - : 2 a0wuag 199Q pusiq e69g0p
1endsoH pue 383(107 J0j S3(A3T I
390100t d901N0t ¥NLNO L ¥1not ¥NNIL UNIL WW 0IsIQ xeL
s1s1a e1ads pue [eidsoH 2621103 21e e Xe) Jozabed  seamupurswvRwmedwimspra - ‘20288 NEL-AUn0D SANELD - S U SEIRY 0L AUB0I 10 AL

3VS18VeLvegD-vvag-v4vy-4805-7/v33614 ‘al 8dojaauz ubignooq



e ———

“‘m._ﬁ_&.a.ﬁi_asaasaeﬁﬁg%.l

I — il uogduasag aeg
Sluswpuswy
SIWQO sng e Jounf N 0L [euoresed( igsig 308100 T (0
UGNBIND3 JO DIEOR WNIE] €} 1USI] j00YIS BI0L T (9
UofeINp3 10 nieag EpI3 O} JaUSI] 004G (B0 L 1N 8¢ (8)
UOREIND3 O DIEeg EITF €1 1UlSI] |00YIS [EI0L gLl (¥)
U0REIND3 [0 RIEOG EISBLY 0L O] 10U |00UIS 0L NOFE ]
10REIND3 J0 PIE0g BISUY 01 01 12UsI] 100WRT EH0L Fh @
sndwe [Brsey NINNT 0L Jeuogeszdg usiq abajiod (1
31013004 UBLSS38SY UOIEIYSSE) pusiq ey

531013004
1111111 __ondu3sag - DO Anu3 Bunel fiobaien
i .Hl!tt (51d) s1211310 Fuawa0odus) piqng ‘sjuaussasse [vads ﬁesii.iﬁ.gajfl”ﬂ b

NI 0Z'LNO 9'NI 814 L0 §'LNO 1T FE'8ZILELNO 0T8T L LNO ' LNO BT'NI INI0TLNO'UNO b 9978 S3NJ/SISEY/SIRUTH

PEFLINOELINO S 00001 ey SpIBWeD/ucslg
1N09LN0 FLNO F'1NQ 0T LNC §'1NO §'1N0ILN00T 000°S amed Aeg
LNOY'LNO 'LNO FNISLNO §'FH N0 I NI I1N0 §'FL LN0
gINO SN0 §'LNO L'LNOE'LNO FLNO 1IN0 LNO LHL N0 9'LNO§'LNO 0T'LNO §LNO 1IN0 8'FL°INO GTLNO KoL N0 851 LN0 LLNO 8'FL  6V9'6 EOBG|Y/RUIMG/SIE0D R3S
e G oy TN NIGENIFIOSNIS 0000 yuwapu pe)
3 "SWL0J |1-Qld uo uojeuLIOju) 0} m-:v._ouuw : SpUSI] XEL B|geAddy  siey fobaied

L PRpI o) e S0P IR MO IS

SJUWPUIWY PuUe S3]0U00 4 SJUAWSSASSY JaYj0 H20]san17 :ajedjijsa) Xe| Jo CODBG 707 sej b1 - (Um0 SSAELD - STV Ul SEIEK 2L AUadosg 1o SELED

3V518VZLv8eg0-vvag-v4vy-4805-v/v3361 4 ‘al @dojaauz ubignoog



D111S1
196°L} 196°LL L96°LL S6L61 668'22 §95°02 wo.o”_mm pue [ediplunpy ‘Aunod ‘ajels [ejol
Lsy'L Lst'L bStL ZyeL Lsy'L Zve'l 30131 [00YDS [EJ0L
005°0 0050 0050 160 0050 L6€0 [euolesadO JaLIsIq 100YoS
- - - - - - 20JAI8S J98(] "Y9B L P 10MISIC [004OS
156y 1661 156y LS6'Y 166y 166 20IAI18S 1GoQ JOUISIQ [00U0S
000C 000 0002 0002 0002 0002 (Are1 6 lig s1eUSg) Juswenoidi| fepded [0oYdS
000°0 0000 000°0 000°0 866y oL8v fedioluny [ej0],
- - - - 8E6'Y 0i8'¥y {euonelado jedidiuniy
0s1'6 0516 0516 £50'L 0S1'6 £50°L funog jejol
0s1'6 0S1'6 - - - - (pallonuo) pPiBIA JON) [euoiesadQ Ajunod
- - 0516 €50°L 0516 €60 L jeuogesedQ Ajunocd
09E'L 09¢’L 09g'L 0se'L 09€'L 09g’L ajels [ejol
09€'} 09€L 09E'L 09€'L 09€°L 09€'L 20Inleg 1990 9IS
Jo13s1Q Jooyos pue ‘Ajjedioiuniy ‘AJunog ‘ajels Joj SSIAT 1IN
04£°205°} 005'€25°9 0412709 805'68'G1L £p8'vLZ'oL ZLL'895°02 anjeA ajqexel
yusiq 963100

uoielD uoyeld uoifen uojke|d uoMeld uoykern 01381 [00Y0S oHaNd

(umoy) uoykeld (umo | ) uoykern Ayrediotuniy
390 1N0 I doo 1not ¥NLNO L ¥1NO L AN NI UNIL JoLSIq Xe L
quEn:DUm seq) R |10 uononpold seo R |10 jeijuspISay-UON |enuapisay [enuapISay-UON jenuspisay uonedsyisse| >tmao._n_

€€0°201°921$ FNTVA I18YXVL 13N ALNNOD TIVHIN0

¢Z0Z jedA xe]
Aunog uoun
IN u se1ey Xxe | Aladold JO S1edyiua)D

2202 Jes A xe] - RuUnog uoiun - SN Ul sejey xe ) Auedoid jo ejeoliHa)




Ll

Leee Leee Leee S00°0¢2 514 X4 Si8'vC [ejo puely
000°C 000°0 0000 000°0 00070 000°0 13430 [ejol

(palionuod
. - - - PISIA JON) [BUOHRISAO JoLISIQ jel0adg

aOMS Y810 8N
sanpug Buixe| JBLQ 10} SaIAST [N

reydsoH ‘abajjon ‘looyss

Leee ez Leee §00°02 6vl'LZ 1%: 374 a1gnd ‘|ledidiuniy ‘Aunog ‘ajels [ej0L pueI9
osey sy oscy 0sT'y sy 0se'y leyidsoH pue 369j100 jejoL

0se'y osTy 0sey sy osey 1744 |eyidsoH [ejol

0sev 0se'y oscy 0sz'y 0scv 0scy feuogeladQ [endsoH

[e3dsoH [eiBUSSD) AUNo) uolun

000°0 000°0 00070 0000 000°0 000°0 uopyeonp3 JaybiH [ejoL
- - - feuonelado josiqg 96s)j00
|epdsoH pue abajjo) 10} S3IAST [IIN

390 1N0 I doo lnot AN I1NO L d.1lnol AUNNI L UNlL PuIsIg xel

2202 183 A e - AuUnoD uojun - SN Ut sejey xe | Auadold jo sjeoynied




L/€

VAZAVXA
42942
00s0
039’0
2LL'8
000¢C
TA 4]
Sey's
051’6

0si'6
09¢°}
0se’L

080'285

sauiopy saQ
(eBejjip) wosiod
N Ni d¢2

[EfjuapISaY-UON

09922
190°L1
620
0¥9°0
cLi'8
000C
08i’c
osle
£60°L

£60'L
09¢'L
0se’}

5ze'9L9

S3UIoO sed
(aBeyiin) wosjod
¥ NI 422

[eguapIsay

092°92
42817
0080
0v9'0
cLL'8
0007¢C
8e6'V
8E6'Y
0516

051°6
09¢°'}
09g’L

€06'2L%'L

SBUION SaQ
(abeyjip) ssulop saq
N NI aez

[enUBPISEY-UON

[AXA XA
L90°L1
§6¢°0
0v9'0
2L1'8
000¢C
Zsl'e
A7
£50°L

€60°L
0se’l
oge’L

8v2'6.0'L

SaUIoW s8Q
(aBeliA) SBUION SeQ
¥ Niaee

[euapisaYy

[4A: 8 TA
(428 33
00s°0
09’0
CLL'8
000°¢
000°0

0516

0616

09g’}

09g’

1L06'v9€'82

SBUIOp S8

AN 1INO ee

[enuapISaY-LON

08v'6l
190°LL
jeierAlY]
0¥9'0
[F2%"]
00072
0000

€80°L

£80°L

09¢’L
0se’L

psid
jooyog pue [edidiuniy ‘Ajuno) ‘sjels [ejol

}913SIQ |ooYDS [BjoL
{euoeladQ oHISIQ 00Y0S
80IAI8G 198 "yda ] ‘P 0HISIQ [00UdS
30IAI8S 198 JOMISI [0040S
(AneT 6 [11g SjeuUSS) Juswaaoldwi [epide) [ooYos
Tedioiuniy (230
jeuoneledQ fedoiunpy
Aunog [ejor
(palionuoD PIBLA 1ON) [eUOKEISdO AUNOD
feuonesadp Auno)d
9jels jejol
901G 1g8( SElIS

jJoLsIg Jooyss pue ‘Ajifediviunyy ‘A3unoy ‘ajels 10} selasT (1IN

881996y

SBuUlop sag

dAlnoce

[eRUSpISaY

anjeA sjqexe).
usig obsjj0]
joigsi |00yoS oland
Ayedpiuniy

PLgSIg xXe )
uogesyisse}n Apadold

2202 128 A Xe1 - Auno) uolun - S|l Ul sejey xe] Auedold jo 8jeouag




Ly

Lev'LE 0i6'9¢ 0l0°LE (421 40X 4 2.09¢C oglLee |ejol puelg
0000 000°0 0000 0000 00070 000°0 J2U30 Ie30L

(patjonuon
. - - - - PI3IA JON) feuoieiadQ JousIq [eads

QOMS YeaiD ain
senug Buixe| J8y3Q 103 S3IAST N

eyidsoy ‘abajjo9 ‘looyos

yA A% 01692 0i0°1e [4: kA 2L0°92 0eL’€T aljgngd ‘jedivlunyy ‘fjunocg ‘ejels [ejo] pueis
sy 0sey 0sey 0sey 0sZ'y 0sZ'y iejidsoH pue abajjo) [eloL

0sey 0sZy 0sey 0sey 0sey 174 4 [epdsoH ejoL

[e°TA 4 0se'v ose'y (67484 0sZv 0574 feuoneladQ jendsoH

{eldsoH [eiauag AJUNoD uoiun

0000 00070 00070 00070 000°0 000°0 uoneonpd JeybiH [ele L
; - - - feuonesadQ JoMsi 963100
|endsoH pue ab3]jo) 10} SIIAST [IIN

N NI deZ A NI 422 AN NI acz ANigze N 1No e dinoze PsIg Xel

2202 18 X2 - AUnos uoun - SN Ul sajey Xe ), AHedoid Jo sjeoye0




L/S

9.8'LL
99¢°L
0050
oey'L
9eV'e
0007¢
0000

0S1'6

0sL'6
09¢'4
ooe’l

82.'190°L
abajjon Auntuwo) eun

Jabundg

N 6v

|enuspisey-UON

905°G1
£60°L
1220
oev'L
agev'e
000C
0000

€60°L

£60°L
09g'L
0se’L

GSE9LY
sbsjjon Aunwwo) eun

Jebuuds

o 6y

fenjuspisey

Zivee
42497
00s0
0¥9'0
(A%}
000°C
059°L
059'L
051’6

0sl'e
09¢’L
09g’L

161'059

SaUIoW 3
(abeyn) afiiauaiD
AN NI 922

lenuapisay-UoN

95414
190°LL
SG62°0
0v9'0
[FX%°]
0007C
1€6'9
LE6'9
£60°L

€890°L
09¢’L
0sed

wusig
[ooyag pue jedioiuniy ‘Ajunoy ‘ajels [ejol

joLgsig jooyds [ejol
{euopelad Jo1ISIq jooyos
80IMIBS 1g8( "YoR L P oHIsId |00YdS
8oInBg 198 JoHsIg |ooyds
(Are 6 (1 @jeuag) Juawaaoidul [ended [ooyos
rediouniy |BJ0L
|euonesadQ jedounpy
Auno) [ejoL
(polionuod pistA 10N} jeuoielado Aunod
feuogeladQ Aunod
ajels jejo )
adlnRg 198 9ielS

JouIsIa jooyos pue ‘Ayedidjunyy ‘AJunod ‘ejels Joj se1AST N

SOv'vEL

SOUIO S8g
(ebefiip) aiiAUaID
A NI 922

[enuepisay

anjep ajgexeL
pusia ebajoD
sIq 10040S dlidnd
Ayredpiunpy

Jo13SIg Xe L

uoneoyisse|D Ausdold

220z 183 A X2 - AUnos uoun - S| Ul sajey xe] Ausdold jo ajesynia)




L/9

SY0°Se
00070

S¥0'sT
691°L
174 4
0se'y

616'C
6L6'C

UN 6y

yeLee
0000

yeiee
829's
osey
0sey

8122
8.2

U6y

(44184
000°0

eelee
0sT'y
0se'y
0scy

000°0

AN NI 922

199°0€
000°0

199°0¢
0sZ'y
0se'y
0sey

000°0

o NI ©ZZ

[ejo) pueis
Jaylo [ejol

(parionuon
PIBIA 1ON) [euoneladQ Joulsiq [eioads

JOMS 210 an
sannug Buixe| JayQ 10} SeIAST N

[eyidsoH ‘abejjon looyss
ongnd ‘jedpiuny ‘AJuno ‘eiels ejo) pueln

[ejidsolq pue absjjo) [ejoL
iejdsoy fejo)
{euoijesadQ |endsoH
jendsoy jeieusn Auno) uoiun
uopneonp3 JoybiH jeloL
euonesadQ Jousiq sbsyjoD
[eyidsoH pue abajjo) 10} S31A3T [N

JousIq Xe L

720z JBB A Xe | - AUnog uoiun - S Ul sejey xe ] Ausdoid jo eyeayiie)




L4

|OOUOS "0\ BBIY BUNT Of, {euoneiado jouisiq 860D
uoneonpg jo pieog Jebuuds 0} 10MIsIg [00UDS [BI0L

3j0U}004 JUBWISSBSSY UOHBOYISSEID

uonduosag Anuz Buixe |

NI L'NI L'6Y' LNO 22’6y LN0 22'LN0 L'INO L 809'8

1NO L 85858

000G

6¥'6Y'67'LNO L'LNO 1'LN0 1IN0 22'LN0 22'LN0 22'LN0 ZZ' N0 L 1516
NI ©2Z‘'1N0 1'LN0 22'LNO L'6¥'LNO ZZ'Nl L'6¥  000°0)

sjouisig e s|gqeoljddy  eyey

uopduosaq

ajed
ESTETHTSTEN TV
14 (2)
14 (1)
usIa xey
sajoujood
AiobBajen
SJUBWISSISSY JAYIQ

SONN/SBSSY/S9SIOH
ayeY/spleweD/uosig
ame) Aeg
eoed|y/eumg/sieos/dssys
Ajuwepu apeD

fioBaen

SIIAST [IIIN HD03SBAIT

2207 182 A Xe_ - AUnoD uojun - SN Ul sajey Xe ] Auadoid Jo Sjeoliued




I Y
%Unmn ounty

Resolution #2023-07
FY 2022 Union County Physical Inventory Certification

In fulfillment of the County’s annual physical inventory requirement, the follow has been
performed:

For Fiscal Year 2022, the Union County completed a physical inventory in accordance with
NMAC 2.20.1.16 Annual Inventory requirements, inventorying all items with a historical cost

of five thousand dollars ($5,000) or more under the control of the governing authority.

Certified as Correct by Union County Manager

Brandy Thompson

Date:

APPROVED by the governing body at its meeting on September 13, 2022

Justin Bennett, Chair

ATTEST

Clayton Kiesling, Member

Brenda Green, Clerk

Member



UNION COUNTY
Resolution No. 2023-08

Authorization of Capulin EMS Fund (412) (DFA #20600) budget decrease

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Union County meeting in regular session on
September 13, 2022 did propose to make budget adjustments; and

WHEREAS, the County of Union does, through Budget Resolution 2023-08 ask that authorization
for the budgetary adjustments be granted, as summarized in the attachment; and

WHEREAS, the County of Union wishes to decrease revenue and expenses by one thousand nine
hundred thirty dollars ($1,930.00) in Fund 412 for the decrease in FY23 EMS Fund Act revenues.
The decrease in expenses is due to the decrease in revenues.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Commissioners of Union County does
hereby approve the aforementioned budget adjustments and respectfully requests the
authorization for the budgetary adjustments and revisions be granted by the Local Government
Division of the Department of Finance and Administration of the State of New Mexico.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and official seal this 13t day of
September, 2022.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS - UNION COUNTY

Justin Bennett, Chairman
ATTEST:

Clayton Kiesling, Member

Brenda Green, County Clerk

Member



LGBMS

Bl Manage Line Items for Budget Decrease Capulin EMS

# > Budgets > Adjustments > Items / Files

+Add +Transfer & Import & Delete A Export [BBAR + Submit to Analyst
: . 1 i
csv |Show| 100 v |entries Search: | 1
| | d @l | d & | [
‘ : - | Originals PreAdjusted . .. « | Adjuste a My & s .
O | Fund Department Object Code Budget Budget ‘Adjustmeﬁt Budget Status Commentsunread Actions
| | | |
20600 z 1
Emergency 3 1 1 ‘ .
O Medical 001N 47090 uateEMS | 12,691.00  12,691.00 | -1,93000 | 10,761.00 | entity O o -
Services epartmen rant ( ) i ,} ctions
412 00 1594 | ‘
Emergen 54050 | |
j Medicgal 4 3003 Emergenc Malnteranees } ‘ | v
O Servi Services/Ar%lbulgnce Repair - 5,300.00 | 5,300.00 -1,000.00 | 4,300.00 entity | O 0 Actions
ervices Furniture/Fixtures ‘ |
412 61 lggll.lzlpment |
| 20600
| ST 3003 E 57170 Util
Medical mergency tilities - { ) . v
= Services Services/Ambulance  Electricity RIERE } at040 ~00.00 ‘ niae entlly | 0 2 Actions
412 61 2025 | ‘ 1 ‘
20600 ; E ‘
Emergency & - | |
Medical 3003 Emergency 57999 Other | ‘ | | [ . v
t Services Services/Ambulance ' Operating Costs 17,141.00 | 17,141.00 ‘ 430.00 1841100 i entity | 0 0 Actions
| 412 61 2076 1

Showing 1 to 4 of 4 entries

< Previous 1 Next >



UNION COUNTY
Resolution No. 2023-09

Authorization of General Fund (401) (DFA # 11000) and Correctional Jail Detention Fund (424)
(DFA #22600) budget transfer and budget increase

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Union County meeting in regular session on
September 13, 2022 did propose to make budget adjustments; and

WHEREAS, the County of Union does, through Budget Resolution 2023-09 ask that authorization
for the budgetary adjustments be granted, as summarized in the attachment; and

WHEREAS, the County of Union wishes to transfer funds to the Correctional Jail Fund (424) from
the General Fund (401) in the amount of one hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($150,000) while
also increasing the line item for contracts with facilities that house Union County detainees.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Commissioners of Union County does
hereby approve the aforementioned budget adjustments and respectfully requests the
authorization for the budgetary adjustments and revisions be granted by the Local Government
Division of the Department of Finance and Administration of the State of New Mexico.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and official seal this 13t day of
September, 2022.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS - UNION COUNTY

Justin Bennett, Chairman
ATTEST:

Clayton Kiesling, Member

Brenda Green, County Clerk

Member



LGBMS

B Manage Line Iterﬁs for Budget Increase Jail

A > Budgets > Adjustments > Items / Files

+Add +Transfer & Import @ Delete & Export [BBAR + Submit to Analyst
Showl, 100 v;entries Search: |
1 ‘ [ ! } ‘
‘ - “ | Object~ | Originals |PreAdjustesl = a  Adjusteds | a | My =/ a .
[J  Fund Department Code Budget | Budget Adjustmernit Budget | Status ‘Comments;unre:d; Actions
| | | |
11000 ‘ 1 ; ‘
General oo\ 61200 1 i l .
[] | Operating Transfers | 755,000.00 | 755,000.00 = 150,000.00 = 905,000.00 | entity @0 0 .
Department [ [ [ Actions
Fund Out \ 1 ‘ \
401 00 1950 ; ? |
22600Ja.|l 0001 No 61100 l 1 ‘ | i
[] - Detention Transfers | 280,000.00 | 280,000.00 | 150,000.00 430,000.00 | entity 0 |0 .
Department | | Actions
401 00 IIr§51
22600 Jail 55999 ;
- Detention 8002 Contract | ‘ | ‘ -
0 Detention -Other | 280,000.00 | 280,000.00 150,000.00 430,000.00  entity 0O | 0 Atiiis
Center Services | | :
424 77 2307

Showing 1 to 3 of 3 entries

< Previous Next »



PERMIT NO. Amended 445

This permit is granted on this 13th _ day of Sept ,2022 | by the Board of Commissioners of Union
County, New Mexico, (County) and PLATEAU , (Permittee),

Address: 7111 N. PRINCE STREET, CLOVIS, NM 88102

This permit is for the sole purpose of allowing Permittee to lay (pipe or cable) for the purpose of
FIBER OPTIC DISTRIBUTION CABLE INSTALLATION

across a certain designated County road lying, situated and being in the County of Union, State of New Mexico, more
particularly described as follows:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

VANDIVER ROAD

SESE CORNER OF SECTION 36, TOWNSHIP 23N, RANGE 35E
NENE CORNER OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 22N, RANGE 35E

This permit is subject to the following provisions: HORIZONTAL BORE

1. a.) Permittee will dig=a=trereh aeross the above-described County Road approximately 3 feet deep.
b.)Pipe and/or cable made of 12 FIBER OPTIC CABLE

c.) Pipe and/or cable shall be 1.25 inches in diameter and of the type Schedule

ORANGE PLASTIC DUCT .
2.  Permittee will then fill and compact the trench to restore the road to an even level suitable for public traffic.
Restoration of the road shall be subject to the inspection and approval of the County Road Supervisor.
3. Permittee shall install visible, identifiable markers on site, indicating the location of the pipe.
4.  Permittee is to perform the construction is such a way as to provide adequate fill on both ends of the road and
shall construct any structure that may be necessary or desirable in connection therewith.
5. All excavation and construction performed under this permit shall be consistent with all laws, rules and
regulations of the State of New Mexico and of the County.
6. Inthe event that the County desires to improve the above-described County Road, the County reserves the
right to request from the Permittee, if necessary to remove and/or relocate in order to make such improvements.
The County will give Permittee notice in advance of making such improvements.
7. Permittee will hold harmless Union County for any damage to third parties resulting from the excavation of
fill.
8. Permittee shall erect sufficient warning barricades and signs to alert all traffic of the hazard during
construction and restoration.
9. At least twenty-four (24) hour notice shall be provided to the Union County Road Department Supervisor of
the commencement and completion of any construction.

Witness our hands and seals this 13th day of Sept ,20 22

SEAL BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COUNTY OF UNION, NEW MEXICO
ATTEST
CHAIRMAN
MEMBER

COUNTY CLERK MEMBER



~ St 9ugel | f
k.__...
w\-,
9¢ NOILOTS L NOILOS "
3408 TYLNOZIHOH
/ ONISSOYO 40/NOILYO0T "XO¥ddY
NZZ dIHSNMOL
- | - ! & 9597|
N 5£9% P ) id ay
| NEZ dIHSNMOL
5 B (1) avod ¥3AlaN
m < m
& V8 ONISSOHO ¥3dId NV
1€ NOLLOTS A 9¢ NOILOZS W LISl
v,
T HAAE




PERMIT NO. 473

This permit is granted on this 13th day of Sept. , 2022, by the Board of Commissioners of Union County,
New Mexico, (County) and Plateau Telecommunications, [ncorporated, (Permittee),

Address: 7111 N. Prince Clovis, NM 88101

This permit is for the sole purpose of allowing Permittee to lay (pipe or cable) for the purpose of fiber optic
telecommunication lines across a certain designated County road lying, situated and being in the County of Union, State
of New Mexico, more particularly described as follows:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
Platean Telecommunications, Incorporated requests to bore / plow parallel to the West side of Callis Road for the
purpose of installing new Fiber Optic cable in an on-going project to improve the telephone and/or internet service
to cooperative members. This parallel will be within the NE4NE4 within Section 18 T22N R36E.
Approximate BOP eoordinates: 36° §' 39.09""N, 103° 7' 55.73"W
Approximate EQP coordinates: 36° 8' 37.65"N, 103° 7' 55.70"W

This permit is subject to the following provisions:

1. a.) Permittee will dig a trench/bore across/under the above-described County Road approximately

Three (3’) feet deep.

b.)Pipe and/or cablc made of 12 Fiber Optic cable encased in HDPE,

¢.) Pipe and/or cable shall be 1 % inches in diameter and of the type Schedule including the HDPE duct
that the cable will be placed within,
2. Permittee will then fill and compact the trench to restore the road to an even level suitable for public traffic.
Restoration of the road shall be subject to the inspection and approval of the County Road Supervisor.
3. Permittee shall install visible, identifiable markers on site, indicating the location of the pipe.
4,  Permittee is to perform the construction is such a way as to provide adequate fill on both ends of the road and
shall construct any structure that may be necessary or desirable in connection therewith.
5. All excavation and construction performed under this permit shall be consistent with all laws, rules and
regulations of the State of New Mexico and of the County.
6. In the event that the County desires to improve the above-described County Road, the County reserves the
right to request from the Permittee, if necessary to remove and/or relocate in order to make such improvements.
"The County will give Permittee notice in advance of making such improvements.
7.  Permittee will hold harmless Union County for any damage to third patties resulting from the excavation of
fill.
8. Permittee shall erect sufficient warning barricades and signs to alert all traffic of the hazard during
construction and restoration.
9. At least twenty-four (24) hour notice shall be provided to the Union County Road Department Supervisor of
the commencement and complction of any construction.

Witness our hands and seals this 13th  day of Sept , 2022 .

SEAL BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COUNTY OF UNION, NEW MEXICO
ATTEST
CHAIRMAN
MEMBER

COUNTY CLERK MEMBER



EXHIBIT“%\?'

{
[

"S_edan-,,vNéW/,Méfi"b'o: L. -
' I ™) ) -

(]
5

L ;

Y b e [ - o
_ ™ .&, &3 i
B el Yl
v 3 '.z' e, ¥ (.
e Pa .

X

e NM:421) = -

-y
MM3

[B0R:363(8739/00"N, 103° 7551733 W,

- o

o -

.

g 0
247!'55.70" W/

Y

&

\Vicinity ‘of\Work Area

-

AppreximatejLocationiofiPermit

. Sedan; Union County, New'Mexico

ExpertGPS




i
|

Sedan, New Mexico

f

$18 T22N R36E

Vicinity of Work Area

Approximate Location of Permit

Sedan, Union County, New Mexico

EXHIBIT "B"

MM

BOP: 36° 8' 39.09"N, 103° 7' 55.‘73'l"W

EOP: 36° 8' 37.65"N, 103° 7' 55.70'W

f
| |

ExpertGPS Basemap: CalTopo.com

ExpertGPS

*
N



PERMIT NO. 474

This permit is granted on this 13th _ day of Sept 2022, by the Board of Commissioners of Union County,
New Mexico, (County) and Plateau Telecommunications, Incorporated, (Permittee),

Address: 7111 N. Prince Clovis, NM 88101

This permit is for the sole purpose of allowing Permittee to lay (pipe or cable) for the purpose of fiber optic
telecommunication lines across a certain designated County road lying, situated and being in the County of Union, State
of New Mexico, more particularly described as follows:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
Plateau Telecommunications, Incorporated requests to bore / plow crossing beneath Callis Road for the purpose of
installing new Fiber Optic cable in an on-going project to improve the telephone and/or internet service to
cooperative members. This crossing will be within the NEANE4 of S18 T22N R36E and the NW4NW4 within
Section 17 T22N R36E.
Approximate BOP coordinates: 36° 8' 37.65"N, 103° 7' 55.70"W
Approximate EOP coordinates: 36° 8' 37.66"N, 103° 7' 55.04"W

This permit is subject to the following provisions:

1. a.) Permittee will dig a trench/bore across/under the above-described County Road approximately

Three (3°) feet deep.

b.)Pipe and/or cable made of 12 Fiber Optic cable encased in HDPE.

c.) Pipe and/or cable shall be 1 %4” inches in diameter and of the type Schedule including the HDPE duct
that the cable will be placed within,
2. Permittee will then fill and compact the trench to restore the road to an even level suitable for public traffic.
Restoration of the road shall be subject to the inspection and approval of the County Road Supervisor.
3. Permittee shall install visible, identifiable markers on site, indicating the location of the pipe.
4. Permittee is to perform the construction is such a way as to provide adequate fill on both ends of the road and
shall construct any structure that may be necessary or desirable in connection therewith.
5. Al excavation and construction performed under this permit shall be consistent with all laws, rules and
regulations of the State of New Mexico and of the County.
6. Inthe event that the County desires to improve the above-described County Road, the County reserves the
right to request from the Permittee, if necessary to remove and/or relocate in order to make such improvements.
The County will give Permittee notice in advance of making such improvements.
7. Permittee will hold harmless Union County for any damage to third parties resulting from the excavation of
fill.
8. Permittee shall erect sufficient warning barricades and signs to alert all traffic of the hazard during
construction and restoration.
9. At least twenty-four (24) hour notice shall be provided to the Union County Road Department Supervisor of
the commencement and completion of any construction.

Witness our hands and seals this_13th _ day of Sept , 2022 .

SEAL BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COUNTY OF UNION, NEW MEXICO
ATTEST
CHAIRMAN
MEMBER

COUNTY CLERK MEMBER



545
EXHIBTA
¢

X

A

¢ ’
n #4
¢ P
'Sedan;|New/Mexicol ™ ¢ a ‘
- 3 ‘ . ,

""'b-vn\.

‘/

v
v

F

Vzlcm‘fty ofi\Work/Area

o Appnoximate LocationjofiPermit
o ‘

’ . Sedan; Union|County, New/Mexico

\
ExpertGPS




L] {
i
i A

Sedan, New Mexico

S$18 T22N R36E

Vicinity of Work Area
Approximate Location of Permit

Sedan, Union County, New Mexico

BOP: 36° 8' 37.65"N, 103° 7' 55.70"'W

5

I
EXHIBIT "B"

i

!EOR: 36° 8' 37.66"N, 103° 7' 55.04"W

: |
I

1
!
{

N C:aIIIs Road
|
g
|

|

J
|

ExpertGPS Basemap: CalTopo.com

ExpertGPS

*
MN



PERMIT NO. 475

This permit is granted on this _13th  day of Sept  ,2022 , by the Board of Commissioners of Union
County, New Mexico, (County) and PLATEAU | (Permittee),

Address: 7111 N. PRINCE STREET CLOVIS, NM 88102

This permit is for the sole purpose of allowing Permittee to lay (pipe or cable) for the purpose of
FIBER OPTIC DISTRIBUTION CABLE INSTALLATION

across a certain designated County road lying, situated and being in the County of Union, State of New Mexico, more
particularly described as follows:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION
BOGGS ROAD (7)
SWSW CORNER OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 23N, RANGE 35E
NWNW CORNER OF SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 23N, RANGE 35E

This permit is subject to the following provisions:

1. a.) Permittee will e+e-a~teesreh across the above-described County Road approximately 3 feet deep.
b.)Pipe and/or cable made of 24 FIBER OPTIC CABLE

¢.) Pipe and/or cable shall be1.25 inches in diameter and of the type Schedule

ORANGE PLASTIC DUCT .
2. Permittee will then fill and compact the trench to restore the road to an even level suitable for public traffic.
Restoration of the road shall be subject to the inspection and approval of the County Road Supervisor.
3. Permittee shall install visible, identifiable markers on site, indicating the location of the pipe.
4., Permittee is to perform the construction is such a way as to provide adequate fill on both ends of the road and
shall construct any structure that may be necessary or desirable in connection therewith.
5. All excavation and construction performed under this permit shall be consistent with all laws, rules and
regulations of the State of New Mexico and of the County.
6. Inthe event that the County desires to improve the above-described County Road, the County reserves the
right to request from the Permittee, if necessary to remove and/or relocate in order to make such improvements,
The County will give Permittee notice in advance of making such improvements.
7.  Permittee will hold harmless Union County for any damage to third parties resulting from the excavation of
fill.
8.  Permittee shall erect sufficient warning barricades and signs to alert all traffic of the hazard during
construction and restoration.
9. At least twenty-four (24) hour notice shall be provided to the Union County Road Department Supervisor of
the commencement and completion of any construction.

Witness our hands and seals this _13th  day of Sept .20 22 .

SEAL BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COUNTY OF UNION, NEW MEXICO
ATTEST
CHAIRMAN
MEMBER

COUNTY CLERK MEMBER



36¢ IONVY 3G IONVY
€2 dIHSNMOL NEZ dIHSNMOL
ZZ NOILO3S | 1Z NOILO3S
——avogseood — | vz )  QvO &
DNIYOSE TV.LNOZIHOH |
OYD 40 NOILYDOT XO¥ddY
w , |
|
“_
- (1) av
=
3G JONVY o 3G€ IONVY ONISSOHO
€2 dIHSNMOL r NEZ dIHSNMOL V.
Gl NOILO3S B 9L NOILD3S
>
O




§6°CS

z2e°891

09°0%

86761

887 €%6

89°1C

057 GLEL

LT 8T
85°€6C
S6°FT
Te 69
0€°69
LZ 91T
6€°2¢
05°99
66°T¢E

L8°0S
T6 06
82 €S
26°8SL

8T PIT

£€97¢L

Z8%82

Junowy #0d

T

:2beg

6TOZS0TO0P WHEONYH JHLSOd DILINDVNW/STTDIVHD

6T0ZS0TOY SIYIHS (9)
0TO0ZSOTO¥ %02 DIW HIVITIAAY 09V¥ WIIQ ddAd
€Z02€0TO0Y INIVYd AVddS dOVIgE $6SP0T #ANT

T80C2€E8009 oq1d FTEYIIOL OL dFdId TTYISNI
T80TTI9C1Y TEpE# SHIYALIVE FTANVH/JIHS
9L0T89STY 6STCH# ASYHT ¥AMOL
GZ0CE010V 65TZ# ONILSOH TIVWZ
LOOZOTTIOY $8TS#H# NOILYLSHNS WHE
L00Z80TOY P8TSH# NOIIVISENS I4Ed AATATHS
SCOTTPLOY ZZT# DON/IEN/HENOHd di NITIOIYD
S20Te0TO0% 996T# NOLILNYE DINWA
SZOCZLSTITY LOSH# DON/HENOHd (0d HTIIANAID
SZ0TLOTI0d 6STZ# ONIMOLINOW WAVIY FITd
9L0Z89STY DA ZZ0ZI9TBOXSBYSEETBILBT HANI
LD0ZZ0TI0Y WD ZZOZT9ZBOXS8HSEETBTLBT HANI
LOOCOTTOV WH ZTZ0ZT9ZBOXS8VYSEETBILBT H#ANI
L00Z80TO¥ 0S 2ZZ0Z9T80XSBPSELETBTLBT #ANI

ZT025%807% 1804 QIONTIOS T6ZE£9€Z-95 H#ANT

wa3T |UTT uoTadransaq

SEDIOANI OSONIANYLSLOO

NITID vaNgdd

STP88 WN NOLAYID
avod AZNOL L0V

NAFID vaANIEd

aT$88 KN NOLAYID
ay¥oyd AINOL LO¥

NITID YaNdEd

ST¥88 WN NOILAYID
INOdd "S5 ZOT

ATd4NS AETATEL

ST$88 WN NOLAYIO
AMH SYWOHL TtL

FASHEY ATIIATG

0¥LL8 WN NOLVA
LT X0 "0°d

D17 SLLIANNIG

81988 WN SEHNIOW SEQ
L9 X0d "0°4

TOD HENOHAATHIL AdTIVA YOVH

8T¥88 KWN SENIOW SHA
L9 X0d "0°d

"0D INOHAETEL AHTIVA YOVL

€9%9 L6T09 TI WYHALS TO¥YD

€9%9 X0d '0°d

ALITIEON I3LY

0ZT6L X1 OTIINYNWY
06TZ¢ X0d "0O°d

FATIVIL ANY INIWIINOH NYDINHWY

9%TT $806L XI (IOLLVILS
9%1IT X0d "0°d

JI¥D ¥¥D I 2 ¥

sweN

TS:00°9%T

cZ0ZTLTS

I¥d €891

arvd
SIOL TE£ 891
Zz0Z81I8

TYd 097 0%
arvd

$I0L 097 0%
zz02Z16

TYd  86°6T
arva

$I0L 86°6T
$6SH0T

aIrvd

$I0L 88 €¥6
2702926

TYE 89712
arvd

$I0L 89°1C
L5Z022-22

T¥d  0§°§LEE

$I0L 0§ SLEE

T9E 9% ZTL
arvd

$I0L 9% 2TL
zzZozZT6

I¥d 8T %11

arvd
$I0L 8T ¥TT
LTI8HZIVT
Tdg  €9° €L
arvd
$I0L €9°€L
TZE9ET-9S
#DANT
zz/80/6  @3eQ



00°008S

€07 LLOY
9L TTLT
9L TTILT
60°Z¢6¢
9L TTLT

96 TTE-

9Z768T

S0°2ZL
00°Z2ZL
00°GST

JUnowy

#0d4

z 1abeg

940292207

€T02S5220Y
£T028TT0%
£T025220%
£€T0Z9CZ0%
€T0ZS82Z0V

0T0ZSOTOY
0T0ZS0T0Y
0TOCSO0TO¥

wa3T SuTT

AY¥dS OLINOSOW/ATA €E€TLL H#ANI

%02 HNOIINONETY
SHIINNOD J0 ONIYIHIVD WHICQ ¥Hd

%08 HNCYINONETY
SHILNNOD J0 ONIVIHIVD WIHIC ¥Hd

000-90T€680~-T00# 00S5¥8ZE HIWIS
000-82Z6C0T-TOO0# 005S¥8ZE HIWLS
000-0€£Z6C0T-TO0# 005S¥8ZE #HIWLS
000-509L20T~-TO0# 0055¥8Z€ #IWLS
000-TTSTHOT-TOO# 00SS¥8ZE HLWLS

HIIL INEWEDVIdHT
JIVAEI MAIL JAISAYOA
IHOIN V¥IXd (T) WEICQ ¥ad

uoT3dTanssq

SEDIOANI ONIONVISLAO

DINITO IHA NOLXYTID
ST%88 WN NOLAYID

9L% X0€ "0°d
ADATNNOD d0 JITHIWTHD
ALNAOD NOINO NOLAYTIO

yZ¥88 WN HTTIANZID
ENYT ANNEL I

ONITSHIX NOLAYTID

ST988 WN NOLAYID
LS NOS¥IAIHL 9T¥%

TIDYYD TTAFHHD

ST988 WN NOLAVTIO
LS NOSEHALAL 3T%

YIDYUYD TTAYHHD

ST¥88 WN NOLAYID
HAY ISEM S 688T

LAY ANV d¥IL IdD

LY90 68TT6 VD YNIOYSYd
L¥900T X0€H O d

“0D T¥dS TYIDNUNIL AVIIIJEELVO

L806L XI IANITXHL
ITHEILS ANZ N 00¢€

JHINITD II-Od SNINE

L8064 XI HNITIXHL
1EFILS ONZ N 00¢€

FEINAD LI-0d SNng

£8C5€ TV WYHONIWIIL

$090¢£8 X0d "O0°d 00T IdEC

DT ONITIIE HIYIOJIOD
OTIIVVIY SHIYS MOOJL SAINADNIL

ST988 WN NOLAYID
aQvo¥ AHNOL LO¥

NETID YaNIdd

ST¥88 WN NOLAYID
qQyod AENOL LOY¥

sweN

TG00 %T

$I0L 9L €T
€ETLL

Tdd  00°00SS

$10L 00°00SS
€ZAI

arvd

$I0L €1°80¢
0zz0Z0T8

TYd 097 0%

arvd

$10L 097 0%

zz0zs16

T 0%°29T

arva
$I0L 0% 29T
zzZ0Z¥v16

TdE ¥8°6L9
aIvd
SI0L ¥$8°6L9
LLOOT

T9d 0% ¥PLST
arydd

$I0L 0% ¥HLST
0055%8Z¢€

aivd
$I0L PvT-E€E
(4434 A 4

TYd 96 TTE

arvd

$10L 96°T1¢€
L9LYETOTY

IYE 927681
qIvd

. $101L 97 68T

8070P0TOTHYX

TYd S0°6%6

arvd

$10L S0°6%6
zZzZ0ZTES

TYd  S6°2S
arvd

$I0L S6°CS
HOANT

zz/80/6 :@3ed



00°2¥%S

v9°C8Y

00" ¢€E

89°0%T

007616

€T°88%

9T°99

9L0TSLICTY
£E€0CTSLICY

ONIJATHS 8VELVYTIWW #ANI
SNAd FATTID XYW STELPTIWW #ANI

SLOSL XL ONY'Id
0SZ# AMIXH TYIINAD N TO0€Z

ONILEMITA NIHAOW SYKH

TYvd T8 9¢€¢€

arvd

$IOL T8°9¢€¢€
8YELYTIWN

IHOIN VEIXHE (T) WIIQ ¥3d

yZ¥88 WN HTTIIANIED
avod SHLAGYNId 6T

SNINYYH NOTAUYR

TYd  00°8ST
aIvd

$I0L 00°SST
(44 ARR:]

yZ¥88 WN HTIIANTID
avoyd SHILIGYNId 6T

SNINIVH NOTAYVKH

arvd
$10L 09°0%
zzozzts

8T¥88 WN SHNIOW SHA
EAY IDATIOD 769

TIVH NILsSAC

aIvd
$I0L vE ¥PCT
Tz0eses

STP88 WN NOLAYID
AMH SYWOHL T€L

aIvd
$I0L 00°2Z%S
zz079¢zese

zz0Z/%0/60 - 62/80
ALITIGYSTIA WAL I¥OHS

8T¥88 WN SINIOW SEJ
@ ZINOUYN 01T

TYd  v9°28%
arvd

$I0L $9°Z8%
zz0Z8es

$STL8 WN FHNOYANDAETY
1$6TZ X0€ Od

ONI ‘SHIYIDOSSY ¥YH-IL

¥.89 €6909 TI ODYDIIHD
vL896 X0€ "0°4d

DT SWHLISAS MIOMIAN LINSHEHDNH

9ZSL9 S¥ JOOMNITIZ
LTS X0d Od

HDIAYES FTIIL ¥ASIHH

8T¥88 KWN SIANIOW SHA
£y Xog "0°4d

SHTYZNOD ¥NNOU

TYd 007 €€€
ardd

$IO0L 00 €€¢€
080€0Z

TYd 89 0%
arvd

$I0L 89°0%T
$5809286€-1€

TYd  00° 616

aIvd

$I0L 00°6T6
TI8LIEHTYA

g €1°88%
aivd

$I0L €£1°88%
(4441

AUNOWY

#0d

€ :obeg

wolT 2UTT

uvotadriossa

SEDIOANI ONIANYISINO

ZZ06L X1 IAVHTNG
0€ET X0€ 074

TONI ‘SY¥OM ENIHOUVAW ¥3Y LAVHTYA

ST¥88 WN NOILAYID
IS A3JSI0A €TT

aweN

TS:00°%T

Tdd 91°S9

aIvda

$I0L 9T &9
LEEZSO0ONT

TYE  9L° €T

arvd

#DANT
zz/80/6 :93BQ



$6 X0d 0°d QdIVd
SIOL 26 6LZ
767 6LT ¥LE8T 9,025220% QIDOIE NIATY OId LL8SL-0ZZ6 HANI SI¥Yd £ ©IF SHINTD OW  LLBSL-0TT6
ST$88 WN NOLAYID Tdd 60789
$6 X0d '0°d dIv¥d
$10L 60°89
60°89 $LEST zZ1025220% TIO/SIYFLTITA 966GL-0226 HANI SI¥Yd £ ©IF SEENTID OW  966SL-0226
ST?88 WN NOLAVID T9d G2 9ST
$6 X0d "0°d QdIVd
$I0L ST°9ST
SZ°9ST $¥LEBT 9L025220% YHITIA/TIO 98LSL-0ZZ6 HANI SI¥Yd [ ©I9 SHINTD DW  98LGL-07Z6
ST¥88 WN NOLAYID TYd 6T LOOT
$6 Xod "0°d  AdI¥d
SIOL 6T°LO0T
6T LOOT PLEST ZT025220% WIY/IFENT/ASELIVE €9LGL-0226 HANI SI¥Yd [ ©I9 STINTD DW  £9LSL-02Z6
ST$88 WN NOLAYID Tvd  ©8°2ST
$6 X0g "0°d qIvd
- $10L ¥8°2ST
$8°2ST $LE8T ZT025220% WALTIL/ITIE/TIO TE8SL-0ZZ6 HANI SI¥¥d 0L 9IF SHENTD DW  TE8SL-0TZ6
ST¥88 WN NOLAVID TYd  §S°ZIT
$6 X0g "0°d QIvd
$I0L §5°C1Z
55°2IC ¥LEBT 9L025220%  NIVHD/HdVL/ONJ ZE9GL-0TT6 HANI SI¥VYd £ ©IF SHMATO DWW TE9SL-02T6
ST¥88 WN NOLAYID T9d  66°90T
$6 X049 "0°d QI¥d
$10L 66°90T
66°90T $LEBT 9L0Z5220% ANILIVE S$9GL-0ZZ6 #ANI SI¥Yd [ ©IF SHENTID DR S$9SL-0TT6
ST¥88 WN NOLAYID TS TL°ZZT
$6 X0d "0°d dIvVd
$IOL TL"TT
zZL" 2T $LEBT 9L075220% AEITIA TIO 9ZSSL-0226 #ANI SIMVYd L OIS STANTD OW  9TSSL-02T6
ST$88 WN NOLAYID 99 86°ST
¥6 X049 "O°d QI¥d
SI0L 86°ST
86°9T VLEBT 9.4025220% HOLIMS FIDOOL 06%SL-0ZT6 HANI SI¥Yd L ©IF STINTID DWW 06¥%SL-02Z6
Z069L XI OTHONY NUS TYg 0T ZEE
688€ X0g  QIvVd

Z8° LY 9L€82 60029010% J=IYE ZO08ZPTE #ANI $I0L 0T°Zgg
8¢ 98¢ 9L€8Z 9%0Z€£0T0Y HOVATE/ANT/IMIL ¥dd TOBTYTE HANI ANVAWOD dAIVE TTIILAVH c08ZYIE
Z069L X1 OTEDNV NUYS T¥d 8T ILT

688€¢ X0d  QIYd
$I0L 8T ILT

8Z TLT 9L€82 9Y0ZE0TOF 'TOSAT/HOVHTILE/JANIT L6Z6TTE HANI ANVARNOD ¥IAYd TTHIAXYH L6T6TZTE
GL0SL XI ONY1d T 6%°9L2
0SZ# AMAXE TYIINIED N T0E€Z aryd
6% °9C ZeEV8C 9L028L92% ONIJATHS ZEDPLPTIWAN #ANI $10L 6%°9LT
007082 [AR 2 T4 £E0CSLOZY SUAADNS ZEPLPTIIWW HANT ONILIMIYIN NIFAOW SYNH ZEVLYTIMNN
Junowy #0d wa3I SUTT uotadrInsaa sweN H#IANT

4 :abeg SHOIOANI ONIANYISINO TG 00:%T €Z/80/6 :93eQ




00°522 88€8C 0T0Z90T0% €TTOY/PTTIOY/O0TTOY 62Z0T HANI IOETIOD AINNOD IFOHAT WN 62201
£008 €£0088 WN SHDONID SYI TYE 95°8%9
£000€ XO0d "O°d ‘HY € DSW  dIvd
DAS NOISNAILXE HAILVNAJOOD ASKN  $I0L 95 8%9
95°8%9 88€£82 0T0Z%0T0% SATIEIA @ SSYID WAD/TD LPZ0T #ANI AOTTIOD AINOOD ADAE WN  LPZOT
£008 £0088 WN SHDOOYD SYT T9d  T£°09¢€
€000€ XOH "O°d ‘HY € DSW  dIvd
DAS NOISNHZIXE FAIIVIEAO0D NSWN  $10L TE 09¢
1€°09¢ 88E8C 0TO0ZH0TOF SNIMIVH W SESSYID WAD 9%Z0T #ANI AOFTIOD ALNNOD HDAHE WN  9%20T
€008 £0088 WN SHDONED SYTI TYE €% ¥0S
£000€ X0g "O°d ‘Y € DSW  dIvd
DAS NOISNIIXE FATIVIEJOOD ASWN  $I0L €% %0§
£%° %05 88€8C 0T0Z¥0TOP NITID "€ SESSYID WAD £¥Z0T HANI IOETIOD AINNOD DAE WN  €%Z0T
€008 £0088 WN SHDN¥ED SYTI TYE 00°06%
€000€ X0€ "O°d ‘EY € DSW  QIv¥d
DAS NOISNIIXE HAIIVIII00D NSWN  S$IOL 00 06%
00°06¥% 88€827 0T0ZZOTOF SISSYID HO¥Nd DITENd T2Z0T HANI HOETTOD AINAOD EOAE WN  TZZOT
€008 £0088 WN SHEOOID SYI TYE 00°SL
€000€ X0d "O°d ‘EY € DSW  QIv¥d
DAS NOISNEZIXE HATIIVEEZ00D ASWN  $I0L 00°SL
00°GL 88€82 0T0ZZO0TO¥ YIDNYD D - TOTZIWN ZLTOTHANI FOFTIOD AINNOD EOAH WN  ZLIOT
TOSLS WN Zd VINVS TYd 00°Z€2¢€
IITILS OHLSITYD ¥v¥  QIvVd
$I0L 00°-ZgzZg
00°ZE€ZE 89€82 STTZTOTOP $-SP0S00 IDAQHEA TW TILTOOTW HANI ALT¥YOHIOY HONVMOSNI AINAOD KWN TTILIO0TH
$0SL8 WN HI VINYS TYd 00°00%
9¥8 "0°'d QIv¥d
YESEMI HOL/HHSEEY ATIEAHG $I0L 00°00%
00°00% 99%82 0T0ZS$807 HONTIHANOD DAS HIIJ NOILVILSIOIA HNOVET TYJIDINAW ODIXHAW MAN  ZZT0ZZZ6
L0SL8 WN Hd YINYS TYd  00°G9
d 518 @ ¥ETIIS TOET  aIvd
ASNADIT AVIING $I0L 00°G9
00°59 TZ¥%8¢C 9.02292T% JIWH IIINNIE AISI¥M €E€LZSWE HANI AVEING SWH ODIXEW MEN £ELTZSKWE
STP88 WN NOLAYID TYd  65°9T¢
IS NIVW ZTT  QIvd
SId¥d OINY IFMILS NIVW  $I10L 6S°91C
657912 ¥I%8C 9L02Z5%80% WIATIAMTEOS/ANALIVE TE80PT HANT SI¥NVd OLNY ¥dYyN  TE80%T
ST¥88 WN NOLAYID TYd  09°0F%
@I SAYW LZ  QI¥d
%0z INOIANDNETY $101 09° 0¥
09°0% TE¥82 0T0Z80TOP  SHETINAOD J0 ONIYEHIVD WHIA ¥Id STTIVD "N HTIEHDIN  2T0TSI6
STH88 WN NOLAYID TYd 0% 29T
@3 SAYW Lz  4Iv¥d
%08 H00VINONETY $I0L 0%°29T
0¥%° 29T TEPBT 0T0Z80TOF  SHIINNOD JO ONIYIHIYD WAIQ ¥Hd SITTYD "N ETIEHDIN  220Z¥I6
ST$88 WN NOILAYID TYd  Z6°6LT
Junowy #04 wa3I SUTT uoT3dTInseq [weN #DANT
5 :obed SHOTOANI OHNIANY.ISIAO IS:00:%T 2ZZ/80/6 :9@3eq



99¢ZS8L XL sSYTITYCQ T¥d 087¢C%¢

LL799T Tae8T £€T0Z80T0¥ FSYHT JSITYHHS 9€9LT69¢ #ANI Z¢ve099 X0d "0O°d aivd
88°9¢ 19¢£8C €T0ZLOTO® HSYHT JYTANSYHEAL 9€SLT69€ #ANT $I0L 08°2Z%¢€
ST 671 TS€8T €T0ZZ0TOY ISYHAT NIWAY 9€9LT69¢ HANI ONI ‘¥Sn HODI¥ 9€9LT69¢

ST%88 WN NOLAVID TYE €1 61T
D ¥EMYNQ  aIvd
$I0L €T STT
€T STT zZ9£82 ZTOZEOTOP FTIA/NIVHD/JENZLSY £PT86TD #ANT TIYMTIVH SOVYSI "M°¥ £PI86TD
ST#88 WN NOLAYID TYE  6L°6
£ OYEMYNQ  aIvd

SIO0L 6L°6
6L°6 z9£8¢ 9.025220% XOIOTID €FP86TD HANI TIYMMIYH SOYYSI "M ¥ £%%86TD
STIP88 WN NOLAYID TYE 00°61€

L ¥AMYSA — dIvd
$I0L 00°61¢€
00°61E z9¢€8¢ LL0ZSTZ0% TITITIINNYH 6678610 #HANI TAYMTIYH SOYYSTI "M ¥ 66786TD
88TT ZV6EL MO NOWAND e 28T LY
88TT X0€ "0°d dI¥d
$10L 28°L¥%
zZ8 LY 87€82 SZOZESOTY HENOHd QAZd €2096T #I1DDY 1014 zZz0Z16

S0%L0 LN NOTINNIX Ve ST°806
€0€# ‘TEAY TAIA T aIivd

SZ° 806 L9%8¢ 9L0ZES0TY HINOW 9 A¥HES INO TI¥D ZHITL #ANI ONI ‘INHWHOUNYW NINONHI CYTITL
SO0PLO DN NOTENNIA T¥e 6975l

€0c# ' "EAY TIIN Z arvd
€z/1€/€ -~ 2T/T/6 $I0L 69°SL

69°GL ze¥8e 9L029780% SEDIAYES HOIVASIUHE SL80L #ANI ONI ‘INZEWIDYNYWN NINDNHEI SL80L
£TTO 992SL XL SYITYA T¥d 607 TTT

£IT099 X0 "O°d QI¥d
$I0L 60°12T
60°TZT o¥vse 600Z6L66%  HAVI SSTOYEd TO090L99ETIT HANI 10ddd #EDIAIO  TO090L99ETOT
€TTO 992SL XL SYTIYA Tvd 11702
€TT099 X0d "0O°d  dIvd
$I0L TT°0C
TT°02 0¥¥8zZ 600Z6L66% SNEd TO09ZFTSEI9T HANI I0dEd EDTAJ0  TO09ZHISETIST
€ITO 99ZSL XL SYITYA TYd 617 0S¥
€IT099 X0€ "O°d  QI¥d
66791 0%¥%82 600ZZ0T0% SNEd T00FHP0TI0T6SZ HANI $I0L 61°0S¥
0Z €€V 0¥¥%82 600T0TIOY SYIVHD (Z) TO0PH0TOT6ST HANI I0dEd EDIAIO  TOO¥H0TI0T6ST
€TTO0 992SL XI SYTITYA TYE  8Z°LS
£€IT099 X0d "O°d  QIVd
$I0L 8Z°LS
82" LS 0v¥82 600ZL0TOY JITAVIS/JEIYA TO0STEVIBIST HANI 10dd3d #DIJAI0  T00SZEF989ST

€008 £0088 WN SHDNYD SYI T¥d  00°S22C
£000¢ X0d "0°d ‘HY € DSHW arvd
OAS NOISNEILXH FIATIVIZA00D NSKWN $IOL 00°522
Junowy #0d wa3T SUTT uotadtansag sweN  #DANI

9 :abeg SHOIOANI ONIGNYLSINO IS:00°%T 2Z/80/6 :®3eQ



IS NTOONIT T arya

06 TLY £%£82 £%025220% SHALIL Z 0Z8% #ANI FDIAYES ANV HUIL W-XIS 0Z8%
STI¥88 WN NOILAYID TYE T% 90T

IS NIODNIT T  dIvd
$I0L T¥ 90T

I%°90T £%£82 TT0Z80T0Y WHLIIA JTV/IONVHD TIO €Z8% #ANI HOIANAS ANV H¥IL W-XIS £28%
ST$88 WN NOLAYID TYd 08" €L6

IS NTIOONIT T  QI¥d
$10L 087 €L6

08 €L6 £¥€82 £%02522Z0% SHIIL 6ELY #ANI FDIAMHAS ANV TIIL W-XIS  6€L¥

ST?88 WN NOLAVID I¥d 00704
IS NIODNIT T aIvd

00°0L T$¥8C ZTOZEOTOV STIIL JEMOW NMVYT €8LV #ANI HOIAYES NV HJIIL W-XIS £8LY
STP88 WN NOLAYID 9g €07 9v%T

LS NIODNIT T aivd
$IOL €0°%%Z

£0°%%C £9£8¢C £%0252207 TYIL MEN TOLY? #HANI HOIAYHS ANV HJIL W-XIS T9LY

ST?P88 WN NOLAVID
ANYT LOIQHHEA ST arvd

Sz TEL LS¥8T TO0TZSL92% ZZ0ZISAONY LSITYIDHAS NOILNIAHNA WIHAOT NOIVHS 22028
9¢¥8 60TT6 YO ¥NHAYSYL TYE  SS°L90T
9¢¥8 X0 04  dIv¥d
zzZoz ‘T€ A1InL - T XIOL $I0L SS°L90T
S5°L90T £2¥8T LOEZLLYTY ONTUOLINOW S35 £6200Z #ANI SHOTANHAS YHANZIIO TANILNZS  £62002
ST¥88 WN NOLAYID Tvg T8 €E£C
@ OdENDYA LST — dIVd
$101 TI8-€ET
187 €€ T7£82 9L0T5220% dWNd TO-0TTLOT *# JEMIO YYEI TIISSA¥ T0-0TTLOT
9925 XL SYITYd TYd  Z8° 88T
Z¥£099 X0d "O°d  AI¥d
SIOL 287 88T
Z8°88T 15€8¢ £T0Zv0TO¥ ASYHAT AV MUTTD 9STTBE69E #ANI ONI ‘¥SON HODI¥  95ZZ869¢
99ZSL XI SYTIYd TYd 287881
Z¥£099 X0d "O°d  dIVd
$I10L Z8°88T
z8°88T TS€82 €T0ZH0TOF HSYHET TINAVY MIATID SSTT869E HANI DNI ‘¥Sn HODI¥  S52Z869¢€
992Z5L X1 SYITYA TYd Z8° 88T
ZP€099 X0d "O°d  dIvVd
$I0L 28 88T
z8 88T 15€£82 €T0ZY0TO¥ FSYAT MIHETD $S02869€ HANT ONI ‘¥Sn HODI¥  #S0Z869¢E
99ZSL XI SYIIYd TYd Z8° 88T
Z¥E099 X0d "O°4d  dIVd
$IOL 28°88T
zZ8°88T 1S€82 £T0ZV0TOF FSYET MYHETD SLOVZ69E HANT DONI ‘¥Sn HODIE  SL9¥Z69E
JUNOUTY #Om ws3l [UTT GOHuQﬂHUmwﬂ sweN #UPZH

L :abeq SEDIOANI ONIONVLISLNO IS:00°%T 2Z/80/6 :®3eQ



L% 58T £5€82 GZ0ZEOTOY NWAY Z0-0ZZ0-ZTE€/Z0-$TZ0-TE #IDDY ST¥88 WN NOLAYID TY9d  €9°SYET
1%°28 £5€£8¢C GZ0OZEOTOP XANNY T0-0820-2€ #IDDY IONISEHD T dIvd
PP STT £5€£8C SZ0ZE6S09 JITHEHS €0-86TT-2Z #IDDY $I0L €9°S¥ET
9T 98 £5€82C $Z0TS2T0¥ IdEd Q¥od TO-S€00-TT #IDDY NOLAVTID J0 NMOL 2202928
ST¥88 WN NOLAYID TTYE  00°0009%
00°000¢€ L8 880ZTOTOV AIVEEIT NOLIIVOOTIV €ZAd INNISEHD T dIvd
00°0008¢€ ZTL®8T £802T8005 DAS ENDSTE/HITA NOILYOOTIY €ZXL $I0L 00°0009S
00°000ST ZL¥8Z O0TTZLESOY YHINTD JOINFS NOILYDOTTIY €ZAd NOLAYTID J0 NMOL €ZAI
£Z¥T 0TZL6 ¥O ANYIINOL Tvd 8T 68
gy SNETHEH ~1S MN 0§6€  dIVd
$IOL 8T1°68
8T 68 £6€8C 9L025220% WKW €1 SNIHSNd $9Z80% #ANTI dno¥s NJELSEM HHL  §9280%
TOT9L XI HIMOM I¥0J TYd 0% ¥¥v8
1IL X0€ "0°d aIivd
SIOL 0% " 7%%8
0V ¥¥¥8 t444:14 9L025220% SHANI HSVAID 8EVSHZT H#ANI Y00 AMANIITY SYXEL  8EPSHZ
8I¥88 WN SENIOW SEAd TYd €£0°20T
arvd
Q9 AQANNDI 0L9 $I01L €0°20T
€0°20T LEYBT 0T0ZTI9ZTY %0z ANOD SWE HTOVID CHINVHONI TIIASOOLS IWYL  2Z0ZZ16
STP88 WN NOLAYID TYd 96°68
88 X0 dI¥d
$SIOL 96768
96768 96€£8C 9,025220% 1d ¥4 IVId € X 9T/€ SSHTT #ANI “0D ONIQVEL AIIIDUYMS SSPTT
ZOLTO YW WYHONIWYII v 097 %9
HATIA SHIAYIS 005§  QIVd
$I0L 09 %9
09° %9 85¥8¢ 600ZZ0T0% SHXOS/SUAANTIE LVLP0%L908 #ANI TONI ‘SHIAVLS LPLPOFL908
¥% 9TT 85€82 SZOZEOTOP NOIIWISHOS AATITHS
68°89T 85€£82 $Z0Z6%60%  ITHM FHIA QAYH/SIKY €98€T #HANI
6 L9 85€8T SZ0Z6%60% TIIM HNIJ AYISIWY £98€T #HANT
$9°88 8G€8¢T SZ0ZESOTH NOILYIS NIV £98€T #ANT
08°0L 85€£82 SZOZESOTH HSNOH INEEIID L J40 S €98E€T HANI
10°1T€C 85€£82 SZ0Z6V60F 14830 MAIA dOHS DY €9BET #ANI
L6°28 85€82 SZ0ZS¥80% FSNOH E¥IA SYWOHL €£98E€T HANI
959§ 85€87 520257807 HSNOH ANWHZAOd ¥ 0 N €98€T #ANI
95°092 85€82 SZ0ZSY80% ASAOH HIIJA NYQIS €98E€T HANT
96°6L 85€82 SZ0ZS¥80% TIEM TOOHDS €£98€T #ANI
T0°2L 85€£8T SZOZESOTH ISNOH HATA ¥DANIS €98€T #ANI
LO 6L 85€£8Z SZOZLSTITY gd FTIIANTID €98€T HANT ST#88 WN NOLAYID TYE L6 ¥ZST
69°18 85€£82C SZOZESOTY NOILYLS NOILNZEM €98€T #ANT 69¢ Xod  QIvd
95°95 85€£8T SZOZIVLOY SWE NITAAYD €98€T #ANI $IOL L6 %Z9T
627211 85€£8C SZOZIHLOY dv¥D HSNOH H¥Id €98ET H#ANI DIMIDETE NIHLSAMHINOS £98€T
ST%88 WN NOLAVYID TS €6°LL
1S NIODNIT T  QIvd
$I0L €6°LL
£6°LL £%E£8T TT0Z80TI0% HONVHD TIO LO08% #ANI HDIANIS QNY HIIL W-XIS  L08%
ST¥#88 WN NOLAYID TYE 06 ILY
Junouy #0d w3l SUTT .ﬂOﬂUQﬂHUM@Q SWeN #UEH

SEDIOANI ONIANYISLOO TS:00:%T ZZ/80/6 :@3=Q



9T1Z ¥82SL XL SYITYA ¢ ZT° 996
9TIZ¥8 XO0g O0d  dIvd
$I0L 2T 996
Z1 %96 ZLEST ZT0TSTT0¥ SYRITIA I9ZF0T090Sd HANT IVD NEDIYM 19Z%0109084d
0006 16208 0D YIANHEA T¥d -6T STT
0006I6 X0d "O°d QI¥d
$I0L -6T1°STT
-6T1°STT €LE8T 9L0Z5220% INFWETE TTZ8LTIONOTd #ANT T0D INAWAINDH JANOYM IIZ8LTIO™OTL
0006 T6208 OD ¥WIANIA Yg -L9°TL6
000616 X094 "0'd dIvd
SIOL -L9°TLE
-L9°TL6 €£LE8T 9L025220% BJ¥NS/IIHE/dW0D 08ZPSTONEOd #HANI T0D INIEWAINOE JANDYM 08Z¥STONEDA
0006 T6Z08 OO AHANHAJ TYE -68°90¢
0006T6 X0d "O°d  QIvd
$10L -68°90Z
-68°90¢ €LE€8Z Z1025220% NIOLAI FATYA 6LZPSTOIE0d HANT TOD INAWAINDH JANDOYM 6LZ%5T0dE0d
$Z988 WN HTTIIANIID TYg  00°00S9
1S HIS Y€ dIVd
9%Z X0€g "0°d  $IO0L 0070059
00°0059 £L¥82 $80ZT800S DAS SWH NOIIYDOTIY €TXA ATIIANTID A0 HOYTIIA £ZAI
0%LL8 WN NOIVE TYd  00°0£092
HAY Q¥OJATITH ISYE ¥¥y  QIVd

zzoe/te/8 - eeoz/1/8 $I0L 00°0€09C
00°0£092C L0%8C LOECLLYPTY SUHANOSTYE 40 ONISNOH JYHINID NOILNALIC OCYNOTTYKN TIDIA 2Z0216
07LL8 WN NOLWY T¥d 007 06¥%LCT

IAY QEO04H¥IH ISVE Pv¥ aivda
SIOL 00°06%LCI
00°06%LZT L0¥8C LOECLLYTY TITE TIIVL ZZAA NOILODHEEIOD JELNIED NOILNHLAU OUUYNOJTTIYW TIDIA 2207¢€Z8
ST988 WN NOILAYTID Ivd 12796
98% X0d "0'4 aIvd
$I01L TZ°96

TZ 36 68€8T 800C2010% ay FONYNITIO VAT Grvevy #ANI JHAYHT ALNAOD NOINN arveyd

TLY0 T€088 WN ONIWAG TN 97168t
T9 TZET 75¢8¢ €T0ZLOTO® ONIYIOMLEN O0T:0€:90ESLOT #ANI aIvd
9 TZET Z5e8C £€T0Z30T0¥% ONIMYOMIAN O0T:0€:90€SL0T #ANI TLY ¥IMYEA "O°d SIOL 29 T68E
0% " 8%CT 28¢€82 €T0ZZ0TO¥ ONINHOMIEN OT:0E€:90€SL0T #ANI DIAYIAL 90€SLOT

L806L XI INITXHL ¥ 09°56¢C

GeT X0d "0°d aivd
$IOL 0S°S62

08°56C £5%8C 9LOCTLSTTY YALSAWAA ISNONY T9€L6 HANI DT DNITIOADEY HLVIS~I¥L T9€E6
0Z¢€SL XL SYTIVA T¢d 00°02T

L?0602 X0€ "0O°d aIivd

zz0z/Te/8 - 2eoz/1/8 “ONI ‘SNOILNTOS ¥Ivd $I0L 00°0ZT
00°0CT ztrese 9¢0Z801T07 T-802Z0Z-2T88LC9 *‘dI INIWILVLS FATIYNIELTIY B JSTY NOINASNYAL Z20CTe6
0¥ 8% £5¢€8¢C SZ0OZE0TOY ad4dy aI0 90-5S90-T¥% #IDDY
L LZL £9€8¢C SZ0ZE0TO¥% ISAOHIMNOD T0-SLZ0-ZTE£ #IDDVW
Junowy #0d wa3I SUIT uotaidransaq SwWeN  #DANI

6 :abeg SHOIOANT SNIANYISIOO 1S:00:%T 2T/80/6 :33eQ



8% ¥S6SC¢ 2+ DNIDIOANT TYLOL*+»

€SCT €L909 TI OSDVOIHD TY¥E 997 ELE
HOVId MIOMLEN £0€ST aIvd
397 ¢€T £EY8LC £E0TSLOZY ONIJdIHS TO0L¥PZOT #ANI SIOL 9S°€LE
00°09¢ £E¥8C €€025L9T% STIDNHEd Z90L¥ZO0T #ANI ‘ONI ‘ININAWIY Z90L%20T

$2188 WN HSOITIW TYE $S 6LEY
ZT ¥D T1S8s¢ aIvd
SIOL PSS 6L7P
PST6LTY 9¢£€82 9L0Z5780% ONILSHL ISOH T0ZZTB0ZZ #ANI ONILSEL ITIEOW N-T 10228022
8T¥88 WN SENIOW SHA g 8L 899
ZTIT x0€ "0°d arvd

8L 8%9 6£¥82 ZTO0ZLSTTY IHDIT/FIIM/IOLOW dWAd 09%TO #ANT JIVATI OLAY ODNIM  09PT
8T¥88 WN SANIOW S3IA TYg 09°92TT

ZIT X0 "0°d& 4Ivd
$I0L 09°92TT

0979211 6£%82 ZIOZLSTTY dYE/SIHOIT/IOLOW dWNd ZTOHTO #ANI FIVdHE QLAY ODNIM Z9%T

90758 6L£82 0T0CLO0TOY TINSVHEL LEOLOPES #HANI

6%°18 6L€EBT 0T0CZ0T0¥ WD LEOLOPES #ANI

98°CET 6LE8Z TTOZEOTOY ADNYNIINIVIN LECLIPES H#ANI

60°6C 6LE8C 9L0TT921Y SWHE NITNAYD LEOLOVES HANI

88 0% 6L€8T SL0ZESOTY qd@d LEOLIVES HANI

257 099¢ 6LEBT TT0Z80TOY JATYTHS LEOLOPES #HANI

ST"8€S9C 6L€8C ¥$02SCC0¥ 1330 g¥0d LECLOVES H#ANI

66" V¢ 6Le8Z 9L0Z89STY qI00D HIIA LEOLOVES HANI

TLTSLT 6L€8C 9LOCZLSTTY ad FTITANEID LEOLOPES #ANI €629 L6T09 TII WYITALS TO¥EYD T¥ed TE£°980T¢
CT " ¥91T 6Le8Z TTI0Z6L66T JOSSHESSY LEOLIVES HANI £629 X0d 04 arvd

63°00T 61.€82 0TOCSOTOY NOILDETE LEOL9PES #ANI $IOL TE°980TE
vL°29 6LE8BT OTOZOTTO¥ WZ LEOLSPES H#ANI JNYE XEM LEOLODES

9TTZ ¥82SL XI SYTTIVA T9d  0€°L1I2Z
9TTZ¥%8 X0d Od  QI¥d

$I10L 0€°LTZZ

0€-LTZZ ZLEBT ZT0ZSZ20y YWHITIA/INEWZTE 98SH0T0£0Sd #ANI IVD NIRIUM 98570T0£0Sd

9TTZ ¥8TSL XI SYITYA IYE 9€°6L92
91TZ¥8 X0d 0d  dIv¥d

SIOL 9€°6L92

9€°6L92 ZLEBT ZT02ZS220% I709/TYES/JEAId 69SP0T090Sd HANTI IVD NIMAYM 695%0T0908d

Jumnowy #0d we3T SUTT uotadTI0S9Q sweN #IANT

0T :obeg SHDIOANI ONIONW.LSLNO IG:00°%T ZZ/80/6 :33ed



